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John Leuwrs Partnership plc

John Lewis plc 1s the principal trading subsidiary of the John Lews Partnership plc

The John Lewis Partnership 1s one ot the UK’s leading retail businesses with 30 John Lewis
department stores, 9 John Lew:s at home stores, johnlewis com, 255 Waitrose supermarkets,

35 Waitrose convenience stores, waltrose com and business to business contracts in the UK and
abroad

It1s also the country’s largest employee co-owned busimess, with 84,700 employees who are all
Partners The Partnership aims to ensure that everyone who works for it enjoys the experience
of ownershtp, by sharing 1n the profits, by having access to information and by sharing in
decision-making through the democratic process

The Partnership beheves that the commitment of Partners to the business 1s a unique source
of compeutive advantage which has underpimned over 80 years of growth and a highly regarded
reputation amongst customers and supphers

The Parinersh:p’s record of performance tesufies to the robustness of the vision of 1ts founder,
John Spedan Lewis, to create a business dedicated to the happiness of the Partners through their
worthwhile and sausfying employment in a successful busmess

John Lewss Partnership ple and 1ts subsidiary John Lewis plc have small 1ssues of preference

stock which have first claim on profits The remamung profit i1s available to be used for the benefit
of the business and the Pariners The share of profits allocated to Parmers, the Partnership
Bonus, 15 fixed each year by the Partnershup Board and 1s distributed as the same percentage of
gross annual pay 1o all Partners All Partners received a 17% bonus for 2012/13 as their share of
pre-tax profits, at a total cost of £210 8m

In this annual report and accounts, references are made to the Partnership and 1ts governance
structures These apply to John Lewis Partnershup ple and 1ts subsidiaries, including John Lewss ple




Lhe Charrman Charlie Mayfirld
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Chairman’s statement

This has been a good year for the Partnership with growth in sales and profit above our
expectatons Both Waitrose and John Lews gained market share for what 1s now the fourth
consecutive year As a result I am dehghted that 84,700 Pariners recewved a bonus of 17%,
equivalent to nearly 9 weeks’ pay

We were encouraged by the accelerauon m the rate of sales growth during the year,
particularly in the final quarter Although the market remains challenging, the Partmership
has adapted quickly and successfully and we saw the benefits this year We have stepped up
mnavauon 1 new products, there’s been a conunung focus on value and sustamed and
rapid growth online This resulted i over 1 5 million more customers choosing to shop with
Waitrose or John Lewss than last year

We sec this as a ume of significant opportunity 1n a changing market Behind the scenes,
therefore, there’s a quiet revolution underway in our supply cham, informaton technology
and support funcuons Our investment m these areas s up substanually and that commitment
conunues into 2013/14 In recent years, the Partnership has consciously invested to have the
right skills, systerns and organisanional strucuures to be able to offer customers what they want
in a fast-changing market

Outlook 2013/14

Although the market remains subdued we see more stability i1 customer demand and further
opportunities to grow market share in both john Lewss and Waitrose We have seen a good
start to 2013/14 After 11 weeks, Partnership gross sales are 9 9% higher than last year
Waitrose gross sales have increased by 8 8% (7 2% like-for-like, excluding petrol) and John
Lews gross sales are 11 9% higher than last year (9 7% like-for-like)

We expect our sales growth to continue this year, albeit less strongly than in 2012/13, and we
are planmng a sigmficant step up m 1otal mvestment, with a particular focus on our supply
chain, technology and systems These investments are central to our strategy of remaining at
the forefront of changes 1n retail today whilst preparing the Partnership for tomorrow

Charhe Mayfield
Chairman
22 Apnl 2013
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Business review

Rewew of performance

The John Lewis Partnership
e Gross sales of £9 54bn, up £811 8m, 9 3%

s Revenue of £8 47bn, up £706 9m, 9 1%
s Group operatng profit of £449 7m up £58 7m, 15 0%
+ Profit before Partnership Bonus and tax of £408 8m, up £565 bm, 156 7%

s Partnership Bonus of £210 8m, 17% of salary (equal to nearly 9 weeks’ pay}

Net debt of £284 9m, down £219 9m, 43 6%

Waitrose
e Gross sales of £5 76bn, up £363 5m, 6 7%

s Like-forlike sales {excluding petrol} up 3 4%
* Revenue of £5 42bn, up £34% 8m, 6 8%
*  Qperaung profit of £292 3m, up £31 7m, 12 2%

John Lewis
®  Gross sales of £3 78bn, up £448 3m, 13 5%

s Like-for-like sales up 10 5%
* Revenue of £3 05bn, up £363 1m, 13 5%
* johnlewis com gross sales of £959mm, up £278m, 40 8%

s  Operaung profit of £216 7m, up £58 8m, 37 2%
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Five year record — years ended January

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009*
£m £m £m £m £m
Gross sales™
Waitrose 5,763 9 54004 49746 4,532 3 4,156 4
John Lewts 3,777 4 33291 3,2317 2,889 2 28111
Gross sales 9,541 3 8,7295 8,206 3 7,421 5 6,967 5
Revenug™
Waitrose 54161 5,072 3 4,699 9 4,317 2 39401
John Lewis 3,049 4 2,686 3 2,661 9 2,417 4 2,327 1
Revenue 8,465 5 7,758 6 7,361 8 6,734 6 6,267 2
Operating profit®
Waitrose 292 3 2606 2749 266 8 2145
John Lewis 216 7 157 9 198 4 160 4 1406
Corporate and other® (59 3) (27 5} (44 O} (39 2) (339)
Operating profit 449 7 3810 4293 3880 3212
Net finance costs (409 {37 7) (61 7) (81 8) (42 2)
Exceptional gain in respect of
associate (Ocado) - - - - 127 4
Profit before Partnership
Bonus and tax 408 8 3633 3676 306 2 406 4
Partnership Bonus (210 8) {165 2) (194 5) (151 3) (125 4)
As a percentage of eiigible pay 17% 14% 18% 15% 13%
Taxation (46 5) (51 9) {45 6) (48 3} (47 7)
Profit for the year retained 1n
the business 1515 136 2 127 5 106 6 2333
Net assets 1,901 2 20089 2,0725 1,704 2 1,722 5
Pay 1,162 3 1,096 3 10217 940 4 908 0
Number of employees at year end 84,700 80,900 76,500 72,400 68,300
Average number of employees 81,900 78,700 74,800 70,000 68,700
including part-time employees 46,800 42,900 40,800 37,300 35,900
Average number of FTEs 53,200 51,100 48,500 45,900 45,100

*53 week year

0 Note 1 to the financial statements explains the difference between gross sales and revenue

2 The basis of allocatien of penston costs to the divisions was changed 1in 2012 and 1s charged as a
fixed proportion of total pay based on the estimated long-term costs of providing the benefit, with
the differences between these costs and the total annual pension operating costs recognised 1n
Corporate and other This was income of £11 3min 2013 (2012 £16 8m), which 15 pnncipally

due to market driven volatihty

W Carporate and other costs are pnncipally corporate and shared service costs, transformation costs

and Partnership Services
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Business review

Reuview of performance (continued)

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

Across the Partnership we focus on a number of KPIs in order to identfy rends in the
trading performance of both Wattrose and John Lewis These KPIs are designed to help
us understand how we are using our assets and measuring operational performance

Group Waitrose John Lewis
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Trading performance
Gross sales growth
— total 9.3% 6 4% 6 7% 8 6% 13 5% 30%
- hike-for-ltke" 6 2% 26% 34% 36% 10 5% 13%
Operating margin® 5 3% 50% 5 4% 51% 71% 59%
Partnership profit margin®® 4.8% 4 6%
Gross sales per FTE {£000) 179 2 1707 1982 1942 1653 1503
Operating profit per FTE {£000) 84 77 101 94 95 71
Number of stores' 329 307 290 272 39 35
Average selling space (m sq ft)* 97 91 52 49 45 42
Gross sales per selling sq ft (£) 982 963 1,111 1,100 835 801
Operating profit per selling sq ft {£) 46 43 56 53 48 38
Cash flow and liquidity
Operating cash fiow before

Partnership Bonus (£m) 979 0 774 1
Capital expenditure (Em)® 3769 517 8
Interest cover” 41 39
Balance sheet
Net assets (Em) 1,012 20089
Net debt (£m) 284 9 504 8
Gearnng® 15 0% 251%
Return on invested capital® 8 2% 72%

M Like-for-like sales 1s a measure of year-on-year same stores growth and excludes the impact of
branch cpenings and closures

@ Dperating margin 1s operating profit expressed as a percentage of revenue

- Partnership profit margin 1s profit before Partnership Bonus and tax expressed as a percentage of
revenue

¥ The number of stores trading as at the year end date

= Average selling space (of all stores and branches) includes all customer facing areas and excludes
offices, warehouse space and Partner facilities

®  Capital expenditure for the group includes £34 4m (2012 £42 8m) of spending on group-wide
information technology systems, vehicles, properties and other assets, not allocated to the
operating businesses

™ |nterest cover 1s profit before net finance costs and tax, after Partnerstup Banus, divided by net
finance costs excluding the financing element of pensions and long leave, and |AS 39 fair value
adjustments included within net finance costs

@  Gearing 1s net debt divided by net assets

®  Return on nvested capital 1s post tax profit, adjusted for non-operating items, as a proportion of
average operating net assets, adjusted to reflect a deemed capital value for property lease rentals




The Partnership
Bonus of 17%
for 201315
announced at

John Leuns Cardiff
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Group performance

In 2012/13 the Partnership traded strongly in a
tough market, and achieved robust sales and
profit growth Sales at both Waitrose and John
Lews grew well ahead of their respective
markets, increasing therr market share

Partnership gross sales (including VAT) were
£9 54bn, an increase of £811 8m, or 9 3%, on
last year Revenue, which 1s adjusted for sale or
return sales and excludes VAT, was £8 47bn, up
by £706 9m or 9 1%

Operaung profit was £449 7m, an mncrease of
£58 Tim, or 15 0% on last year, and operaung
profit margin increased from 5 0% to 5 3%

Profit before Partnership Bonus and tax was
£408 8m, an increase of £55 Bm, or 15 7%, on
last year As a percentage of revenue, profit
before Partnership Bonus and tax mcreased
from 4 6% to 4 8%

These results reflect the collective hard work of
our Partners who, as co-owners, each received
the same percentage of annual pay as a cash
bonus Partners shared £210 8m 1n profit, which
represents 17% of pay or the equivalent of
nearly 9 weeks’ pay

Gross sales {Em)

Operating profit (Em) and margin (%)

Profit before Partnership Bonus
and tax (€m) and margin {%)

Partnership Bonus
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Business review

Rewvew of performance (continued)

Net finance costs

Net finance costs mcreased by £3 2m (8 5%) o
£40 9m Net finance costs on borrowings and
mvestments decreased by £04m (0 7%) to

£58 1m whilst the financing elements of pensions
and long leave and non-cash fair value
adjustments increased by £3 6m (17 3%) Interest
cover mncreased 1o 4 1, up 0 2 on last year

Tax

The tax charge decreased compared with last
year reflecting a lower effective tax rate of 23 5%
compared to last year’s rate of 27 6%, due to a
lower standard rate of corporation tax and tax i
respect of prior years

Profit for the year
Profit for the year was £151 5m, up by £15 3m, or
11 2% on last year

Net finance costs (£m)

Interest cover (times)

Profit for the year (Em)
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Investment in the future

Caprtal spending 1in 2012/13 was £376 9m, a

decrease of £140 9m (27 2%) This reduction Capital expenditure {(€m)
largely reflects fewer branch openings and lower

spend on refurbishments We expect capital

spending in 2013/14 to return to 2011/12 levels

Waitrose mvested £198 2m, mainly on new
branches opening i 2012/13 together with three
extensions, branch refurbishments, investment 1n
the implementatuon of a new warehouse
management system to drive productivity in our
supply chamn, and also a number of retail systems
improvements to aid efficiency and enhance the
flexability of our offer

John Lewis invesied £144 3m, with the mix of
mvestment conunuing to reflect the business
strategy of opening new space, refurbishing key
shops and investing 1n the informauon
technology and distnbution infrastruciure to

support omnr-channel trading Operating cash flow and

net debt (£m)
In addition, £34 4m was mvested centrally, mainly

i mamtaming and modernising our mformaton

technology platforms, head office buildings and

residential clubs

Cash flow and net debt
Cash generated from operations grew to
£991 1m, an increase of £217 1m, or 28 0%

At 26 January 2013, net debt was £284 9m, a
decrease of £219 9m, or 43 6%, and gearing ratio
decreased from 25 1% to 15 0% Durnng the year
we repaid borrowings totalling £242m from
avatlable cash In January 2013 we replaced a
number of exisung bilateral borrowing facilites
with a new £325m five year syndicated facility,
which was undrawn at year end

Gearing™ ratio %
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Business review

Review of performance (continued)

Return on invested capital

Return on mvested caputal increased 10 8 2%, an Return on invested capital (%)
immprovement of 1 0% Ths reflects increased

returns from investment decisions and the

improved operaung performance made across

the Partnership

Net assets Net assets (£Em)
Net assets decreased by £107 7m, or 5 4%, to
£1,901 2m Ths reflects an mcrease 1n the
pension deficit of £184 O0m and a decrease 1n
working capital of £197 8m, principally through
improved management of trade reccivables and
trade payables This has been parually offset by
a reduction 1n borrowings and overdrafts of
£244 8m and an increase mn property, plant and
equipment and mmformation technology systems
of £71 9m

10
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Pension charge

We continue to maintain an open non-
contributory final salary defined pension scheme
A defined contribution scheme 1s also available to
Partners during the three year quahfying period
before joining the defined benefit scheme

The accounting charge for pensions included
within operatung profit was £138 Om, an increase
of £14 0m or 11 3% on the prnior year reflecting
the change i the financial assumptons and
growth m scheme membership

The total accounung pension defiait at

26 January 2013 was £822 1m, an increase of
£184 0m (28 8%) Net of deferred tax the defient
was £652 4m The accountng valuation of
pension fund habihues increased by £621 O0m
(19 6%) to £3,796 Om, while pension fund assets
mecreased by £437 0m (17 2%) 10 £2,973 9m,
mcluding a £125m one-off cash contnbuuon
made by the Partnership in January 2013

A formal actuanal valuauon 1s carried out at least
once every three years by an independent
professionally qualified actuary and the next
formal actuarial valuauons will be as at 31 March
2013 Given that gilt vields are indicating lower
returns in the future, we anticipate the actuarial
funding positicn will have weakened On the
actuanal funding basis used in the last valuauon
m 2010, we estimate that our defined benefit
final salary schemes would have ended the year
with a surplus of approximately £280m

The pensien 1s one of the most important
benefits offered to Partners, but also accounts for
a significant mvestment 1 Partners made each
year by the Partnership During the next year the
Partnership will be undertaking a review of the
pension scheme to ensure that 1t can remain fair
to Partners and sustamable from a business
perspective This review will allow the
opportunity to consult extensively to make sure
that any changes are right for both Partners and
the longer term interests of the Partnership

11

Pension charge (Em)

Pension accounting deficit (Em)
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Business review

Review of performance (continued)

Waitrose

Waitrose's gross sales grew strongly, up 6 7%
(£363 5m) to £5 76bn m a slow market.
Lakefor-hke sales grew by 3 4% with a nouceable
accelerauon y the second half of the year as the
impact of our mvestment in lower prices kicked i
This also helped to drive volume growth m our
like-fordike estate Gross sales density rose by 1 0%
to £1,111 per square foot and gross sales
productmity per FTE increased to £198,200, up
£4,000 (2 1%) on last year

Operaung profit grew by 12 2% to £292 3m
Operaung margin was up from 5 1% w 5 4%,
operatng profit per selling square foot was up

5 6% from £59 to £36, as was operaung profit per
FTE, which increased by 7 4%, from £9,400 1o
£10,100

A sustamned investment in lower prices, unwaverng
commitment to product quality and high standards
of customer service have resulted i Waitrose
outperformuing the ndustry for the fourth ycar
running with market share up from 4 7% to 4 9%

The combination of Brand Price Match (matching
Tesco’s prices on branded lines excluding
promotions), at least 1,000 promoucns a week, the
expansion of essential Waitrose to 1,800 lines, and
sharper own-label prices across the board created
an atracuve value package, and conunued to
change consumers’ views on Waitrose’s price
posiion Overall, customer transacuons grew by

6 1% m the year

Inn parallel with lower prices, mnovauon conunued
apace and we mtroduced 4,700 new and improved
products, more than ever before 1n a single year -
all with the same commitment to the high
standards of quality, sourcing mtegnity and faurness
to supplers for which Waitrose 1s known
Particularly successful new lines have been ranges
of celebrauon cakes and desserts and the Heston
from Wartrose range of ready meals Quality and
mnovauon will conunue apace with 5,000 new
products planned for 2013/14

Our strategy has anucipated changing shoppmg
pauerns and customers now choose to shop across
all our formats - full weekly shops m branches and
onhne {mcluding mobile}, top-up shopping n
Laule Wartrose shops, Chek & collect purchases

12

Waitrose
Gross sales {(Em)

Waitrose
Gross sales per selling square foot (£)

Waitrose
Gross sales per FTE (£000)
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collect orders can be
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A new Waitrose
distribution centre
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n summer 2013, to

support our expansion
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from Waitrose and John Lewis picked up m our
supermarkets and convenience shops

Waitrose com had a very successtul year with
online sales growing by 49%, compared 1o 19% for
the online grocery market according to Kantar
Worldpanel data The grocery service 1s available
from 199 branches and from the customer
fulfilment centre 1 Acton, West London which
handles more than 19% of all orders John Lews’s
Chick & collect 1s proving hugely popular and has
mcreased footfall in our Waitrose branches - for
example, over the Christmas period our branches
handled 300,000 such orders

Eaght Liude Waitrose convenience branches and 11
new core shops were opened m the year, which
together with one closure, brought the 1otal estate
to 290 branches In addivon we carned out major
redevelopments on our branches m Putney,
Saxmundham and Bath, with Bath doubling in suze
to 38,000 sq ft Wartrose 15 also present in 17
Welcome Break motorway services and on two
Shell forecourts

We now have seven hcensed shops in the Middle
East, having opened four more during the year We
now export Wairose products to more than 30
countnes, with new markeis in the last year
including South Korea, Tatwan, Gibraltar and
Tndad Export sales rose by 20% in the year

We plan to open eight core branches, includmg
Helensburgh, our sixth shop in Scotland We wall
also open up to ten Little Waitrose convemence
shops, the first of which was in Vauxhall, London
inx April 2013 We are also planning a substanual
refurbishment programme of our exisung shops

Waitrose will open a new Regional Distrbuton
Centre (RDC) m Leyland, Lancashire, in summer
2013 to support expansion mn the north of England
and Scotland Recrutment for the 300 new jobs
created 1s already underway We have also mvested
m a new Warehouse Management System which,
through increased picking accuracy, 1s already
leading to a significant improvement n avalabihty

In the year ahead, Waitrose will further invest in
customer service with roles for 200 specialists in
fresh produce and horuculure A further 2,000
Partners will become product adwisors in their
branches

13

Waitrose
Operating profit (Em) and margin

Waitrose
Operating profit per selling square foot (£)

Waitrose
Operating profit per FTE (£000)
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Busiess review

Reuview of performance (conlinued)

John Lewss

John Lewns gross sales grew strongly through the
vear up, 13 5% (£448 3m) to £3 78bn despite a
market which continued to be challenging Total
hke-for-tike sales grew by 10 5% Gross sales per
square foot increased by 4 1%, from £801 10 £835,
and gross sales per FTE mcreased by 10 0%, from
£150,000 to £165,000

Operaung profit grew by 37 2% to £216 7in
Operaung margm was up from 5 9% to 71% on
last year Operatng profit per selling square foot
mcreased by 26 3% from £38 to £48, and
operating profit per FTE mcreased by 33 8%,
from £7,100 10 £9,500

Exciting products, knowledgeable customer
service and effecuve marketing, together with our
commitment 1o be Never Knowmgly Undersold,
all contnbuted to this success, while the brand
was given added impetus by our high profile
support for London 2012

We achieved market share gains in all three of
our main categories Sales in Fashion increased by
9 1%, driven by a mix of own brand, new brand
acquisitons and designer collaboratons Home
saw good growth of 6 2% and John Lews now has
the sccond largest home market share in the UK.
Electricals and Home Technoelogy (EHT) grew
very strongly, up 28 9%, achieving our highest
ever market share posittons 1 computers
{including tablets}, TVs, cameras and both large
and small elecineal goods, and reflecung the trust
customers have m our price-matching posiion,
our Parmers’ product knowledge and our strong
supplier relationships In Apnl 2012, John Lews
was voted ‘Britain’s Favounte Electricals Retailer’
by Verdict and alse came top 1n 1ts ‘Customer
Service’ category

Product mnnovation, quahty and value at all price
pomts were central to success in each category
Brand partmerships in EHT, new designer brands
such as Grayers, Scasalt and Allegra Hicks in
Fashion as well as mspirauonal ranges from Nick
Monro, Bethan Gray and Tilly Hemmgway m
Home have set the pace for innovauon In own-
brand, we launched highly successful ranges such
as our desigher collaborauon with Alice
Temperley and House, a wide selectton of home
furmishings and accessories

14

John Lewis
Gross sales {Em)

John Lews
Gross sales per selling square foot (£)

John Lewis
Gross sales per FTE (£000}
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To make our brand more accessible, we made
tmportant steps in giving customers a seamless,
‘omni<hannel’ expenience johalewis com gross

sales were up 41% 1o £959m and the channel now

accounts for over 25% of trade John Lews shops
gross sales were up 6 4% with like-for-like shop

sales up 2 6% Nearly two thirds of all wransactions

now mvolve customers visiuing both shops and
online chanuels

Click & collect, available in all John Lews and 193

Waitrose outlets, 1s a key part of this change in
shopping behaviour and 1s our fastest-growing
fulfilment channel Orders have almost doubled
year-on-year, with 43% of purchases collected
from Wastrose branches

We are also strengthening our informauon
technology and supply chain nfrastructure In
February 2013, we successfully relaunched
Johnlewis com on a new £40m piatform to
support our onkime growth and have announced
mvestment m a new distribution complex to sit
alongside our existing operation at Magna Park

We opened four shops m 2012/13, three ‘at
home’ branches in Newbury, Chichester and
Ipswich and a new format shop 1n Exeter,
providing a full-line assortment i a smaller
trading space This year we will refurbish John
Lewis High Wycombe and invest in
refurbishments at John Lews Oxford Street,
Kingston and Notungham We are planning two
new shops m 2014 1 York and Birmingham

Beyond our tradiional products and services,
John Lews Insurance has seen good growth n
2012/13 We have also begun a partnership to
host Kuom travel services in our shops and,
internatonally, we have developed our first
collaborauon with Shinsegae, a South Korean
department store We will be launching French
and German language websttes later this year to
take advantage of the two most well developed
EU e<commerce markets

15

John Lewis
Operating profit (Em} and margin

John Lews
Operating profit per selling square foot (£)

John Lewis
Operating profit per FTE (£000)
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Business review

Reuview of performance (continued)

Parinership Services and Corporate

Parmership Services, which was estabhshed 1n
2009 as the Partnership’s busmess services
division 1o support John Lewis and Waitrose,
made a significant contribunion to our efficiency
over the year helping to deliver benefits
through better procurement of not-for-resale
goods and services, and working capital
improvements

The cost of our process operations was held flat
with producuvity improvements offsetung
inflancn and growth m hkefor-ike transactions
The breadth of the processes managed by
Partnership Services for both Parmers and
supphers conunued to increase last year to
mnclude more standardised procurcment of not-
forresale goods and services, simpler electronic
IVOICING, MOFe accurate expense mandgement
and travel management services for Partners

The level of investment 1in a number of
sigiificant transformation programmes has
increased by over £20m, which 1s the primary
factor behind the year-on-year mcrease in
Corporate costs These programmes are
principally within our Personnel, mnformauon
technelogy and Partners’” Counsellor’s
funcuons, and are designed to mcrease both the
efficency and effectiveness of our support
funcuons, and are central to our move o build
a more agile and adaptable organisauon

16
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opened this year, the
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Business review

Business and strategy

Purpose of the Partmership

The Partnership’s reputation 1s founded on the
uniqueness of our ownershup structure and our
commercial success As setoutin Principle 1 of
our Consutunon, “the Partnership’s ullimate purpose
15 the hapness of all its members, through therr
worthwhile and satisfying employment in a successful
business” We measure success by our abihity to
sustain and to enhance our position both as an
outstanding retailer and a thewing example of
employee ownershup We beheve our model,
where commercial success 1s a driving force but
where the needs of customers, Partners, and
long-term financial ambiuons are balanced,
represents a sustainable, compassionate and
fairer form of capitalism and a betier way to do
business

Strategic development — background

The Parinership owns two of the strongest retail
brands in the UK. Waitrose 1s renowned for the
freshness, quality, safety and provenance of 1ts
food combimed with the experuse and service of
a specialist shop while John Lewrs’ reputation 1s
built on a strong product range and excellent
service, underpinned by the Never Knowingly
Undersold pricing policy Neither Waitrose nor
John Lewis depends on dominant market share
but on disuncuve posiuoning which secures an
excepuonal degree of loyalty from customers
That loyalty has been built on customers’ wrust
and confidence m our sourcmg, pricing and
quality standards and by selling our products
mmparually with consistently excepuonal service
It has been remnforced by recogmton of our long-
held desire to act responsibly and to mmnimmse
our environmental impact The Partnership is
uniquely placed to do this because our social,
ethical and environmental values are ingrained in
our culture, and we consistently demonstrate this
through cur commiutment to the communues we
serve

Strategic imtiatives

The ongoing pressure m the UK retail
landscape has affirmed our commitment to the
strategic aims we set last year To ensure we
conunue to deliver agamst the Partnership’s
ulumate purpose, and to emphasise our belief
that our model 1s a better way of doing business,
everything we do will be ahigned with the
intention to either unlock the potenual of our
Partners, to capture the market potenual for
our brands or to grow our business i an
efficient manner
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Despite the challenging market condttions both
Waitrose and John Lewis traded well through
the year, outperformmg their respecuve
markets Decisions taken to conunue to invest
through the worst of the recession have proved
to be the right ones and helped to sustain this
market outperformance In response to
changing customer needs, we have made
lmportant mvestments in value and 11
omnichannel to mncrease access to our brands
In Waitrose, the conunued success of the
‘essential’ range, the Brand Price Match
imitiative and promotional pricing have
reminded customers of our price/quality
relanonship Likewise, John Lewis has
conunued to develop the value wathin its ranges
which, when combined with widely acclaimed
adverusing and the commitment to remain
Never Knowingly Undersold, have given
customers a reason 1o return to us ume and
ume agam

We remain committed to maintaining a
business model which will support the
Partnership in the future We continue to
manage reorganisations to ensure that the
Partnership remains compeuuve and that our
Partners remain at the heart of our service
offering for many years to come

We recognise there remain new opportunities
to develop our brands Within the UK, new
stores have been opened for both brands with
an emphasis on exciung new formats such as
the John Lews store at Exeter, which carries a
full assortment 1n less selling space than a
traditional Department Store, and the Little
Waitrose convenience stores Additnonally we
have taken our brands to new international
markets through the John Lewis website and
the expansion of the Waitrose export business
We continue to experience strong growth from
our online operaunons as customers increasingly
embrace a multchannel approach to retail,
and we will continue to 1nvest m improving the
ease with whach our customers can interact with
us through improved web and mobile presence
and mitiatives such as Click & collect which
have underpinned our success through
2012/13%




A team of buyers are
based 1n our new
India sourang office
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Resources and relationships

Partners

Our culture

The Partnership aims to be a better and more
successful business by putung the happmess of
Parwers at the heart of what we do and
genuinely mcreasing their advantage Etis the
embodunent of an 1deal, the outcome of nearly
a century of endeavour to create a different
and better sort of company, owned m trust for
our Partners and dedicated o serving
customers with honesty, flair and fairness

Because the Partnership 1s owned n trust for
members, they share the responsibahiues of
ownership as well as 1ts rewards — profit,
knowledge and power

Qur three Partner Commutments help us to
bring Principle 1 of our Consttution to hfe
through responsibility, relationships and
mfluence

¢  Take responstbility for our business
success — We take responsibility for
delivering the right expertence for all of
our customers, generating profits for us all
1o share,

. Build relauonships powered by our
principles — We build relatuonships based
on honesty, respect and encouragement
We expect these behaviours of cach other
and demonstrate them at all imes, and

*  Create real influence over our working
lives — We take every opportunity to
develop ourselves, balance work and hife
priorities and support cach other

Our Parwners will tell you that the John Lews
Parmership feels a very speaial place to work
We believe our disuncuve culture — our spirit —
Lies at the heart of this feeling Asa
Partnership, we are a democracy open, fair
and transparent, and there 1s a true sense of
belonging to something unique and highly
regarded Our profits are shared, our Partners
have a voice and there 1s a true sense of pnide
The Commitments underpin the relattonships
we have with customers, the commumues we
trade 1n and our supphers
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We also create and nurture a culture of
inclusmvity by valuing the differences of those
who are engaged in the Partnership, whether as
Partners, customers, suppliers or as part of the
wider community Embracing inclusion and
diversity shows that we are open to all who want
to work, shop and trade with us From an
employment perspecuve 1t helps us to attract,
retain and develop Partners while developing a
creative and mnovauve culture and being open
to new suggestions and 1deas Diversity in the
Partnership s based on three values

. Pariners are treated as individuals and
with respect, honesty and fairness,

*  Our employment policies are fair and
provide equal opportunities for ali,
regardless of age, gender, ethnicity, social
background, religion, chsability or
sexuality, and

. We respect and reflect the communities
within which we trade

Talent development

The Partnership wants to provide meaningful
work and carcers for Partners, where they can
fulfil their potental by taking on new
challenges and opportumues To achieve this
the Parmership

*  Aims to promote exisung Partners with the
right skills and capabiliues rather than
recruiting externally,

*  Helps Parmers to lcarn as much as they
can about the Parinershup and our
acuvities,

*  Prowides knowledge and tramng to help
Partners carry out their responsibilines
better, and

. Encourages and supports Partners m
general education and interests in fields
that are not directly work related




The Partnership 15
commatted to proveding
first elass service across

all retar channels

Partners helped
refurinsh the St John
Wales” community
Saclity near Carduff

John Leuns shops in
Scotland recerved a
Business in the
Communty ‘Big Tuck’
Award for their yoint
Work Insprration
Programme, an
malialive run n
partnershap wath local
schools prowmding
menloring sessions
and work experience
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Partners (continued)

We aim to provide exemplary leadership that
empowers Partners to delwver first class
customer service in ¢ach one of our John Lews
deparunent stores and at home stores, Waitrose
supermarkets and convenience stores, online
and other retail channels Our Partners are
equipped to do so through their atutude,
behaviour and skills, supported by tramming,
learning and development

Benefits

Our reward strategy aums to provide a Total
Reward Package that offers competiuve pay and
disuncuive market leading benefits, such as our
non-contributory defined benefit final salary
pension scheme for those Partners who stay
with us for more than three years For those in
therr first three years, a defined contributon
scheme 15 available where we match Partner
contributions up o 4 5% of pensionable pay

A signuficant element of Partner reward 1s the
Partnership Bonus This 1s shared as an equal
percentage of annual pay amongst all Partners
In 2012/13, Parmership Bonus was 1 7% of pay
which 15 equivalent to nearly 9 weeks pay ata
total cost of £210 8m This 15 a shared bonus for
shared effort

We also aim to provide opportunities for
Partners to have a chowce in benefits and
lelsure acuvities, recognising the growing
diversity of the Partnership

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Purpose and strategy
Our founder, John Spedan Lews, built the

Partnership on the principles of being a
responsible business Through our principles
and Consttunon we demonstrate our regard
for operating in a socially, economaically and
environmentally sustainable way, recogmsing
the criucal role this plays in ensuring we

*  Manage risk and demonstrate legal
comphance,

*  Increase compeutive advantage by
capturing opportunities that build brand
trust, customer loyalty and increase
business value,

¢+  Enhance or protect the reputation of our
business and brands,

. Atutract and retain Partners,
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. Meet customer and other stakeholder
expectations, and

*  Drve cost savings and efficiencies

We aim to manage and develop our business in
a sustamable manner 1n the areas of

Our customers We will bring sustainability
1o the heart of our customer
communications to help to promote
sustainable choices,

*  Our products and suppliers We will create
sustainable supply chains through suppher
partnerships based on honesty, fairness
and respect and ensure that sustamnability,
as well as quality, characterises the
preducts and services we sell,

*  Our Partners We will provide worthwhile
and satisfying employment mn a successful
business, successfully harness Partners’
passion and energy to achieve engagement
and participation across every aspect of
our sustamability agenda, and create real
opportunities for Parthers to live
sustaiably,

Our communities We support sustainable
communities where we do business, and

L4 Our environment We will deliver
excellence in environmental pracuce
across our business

As the UK'’s largest example of worker co-
ownership, all 84,700 of our employees are
Partners and they play a crucial part in the
Partnership’s continued success Partners
embody the Partnership’s principles of respect,
mtegrity and courtesy — and increasingly they
help our business find new and mnovative ways
to make our operations, products and services
more sustainable

Pohcy

Where there are legislative imperatives we seek
to be comphant, and our policies are shaped by
these legislative requirements How we manage
CSR 15 clearly set out in our CSR policy which 1s
reviewed and approved by the Chairman’s
Committee

Governance and risk

Effective governance and risk managemernt are
essenual 1o ensuring we meet our stakeholders’
needs n the long term Our CSR governance
arrangements are key to driving our CSR
programmes forward and to contunuing to




The Partnershap has
secured a Gold rating
1n the 2013 Business

m the Communaty
(BITC) Corporate
Responsibility Index

Every Waitrose com
delvvery helps plant
new trees, in
parinershify wath the
Whoodland Trust

Wartrose belirves 1n
champroning Bnitish
frrodurce, treadimg hghtly
on the envtronment,

supporting responsible
sourang and treating

people farly — thus is the
Waztrose Wiy
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Resources and relationships (continued)

embed CSR mto our everyday business
practices

Overall responsibility for CSR continues to rest
with the Director of Personnel Operational
management responstbility for CSR 1s
delegated to the Managing Directors, who are
supported by mdividual members of ther
dvisional management boards

In order to decide where to focus our efforts
we assess and prioritise CSR risks, opportuniues
and msight by engaging with a wide range of
stakeholders This process enables us o
Increase our responsiveness to stakeholder
concerns, find new ways to reduce our impacts
and maximise opportuniues, balance business
efficiency with economic success and,
ulumately, continue to make the Partnership
more competitive, profitable and sustamable
Our CSR departments retam responsibility for
idenufying and prionusing CSR nisks and
opportumities and ensuring that appropriate
controls arc in place to manage these

Our governance process informs the divisions
of Corporate policy and mamtams an oversight
of the policy implementauon, whilst allowing
the divisions discretion to the extent that they
require operational freedom

Our two trading divisions use “The Waitrose
way’ and John Lewis’ ‘Bringing Quahty to Life’
to share their CSR strategy and commitments
with Partners, customers, supphers, and other
key audiences They allow them to message
their distnct and specific CSR proposiions and
activiues while delivering the Partnership’s
overarching CSR commitments

‘The Waitrose way' 15

*  Championmg British — We believe m
always bringing people home-grown food
and produce at 1ts very best, celebraung
the Britush food season and working with
the best local and regional suppliers,

*  Treading Lightly — We believe in making
the right choices for the environment by
reducing packaging, waste, water and CO:
emissions, and sourcing our food and raw
maternals responsibly At Waitrose, product
stewardship and mamtaiming the hughest
levels of agricultural and environmental
management are our key focus at home
and abroad We look closely at our
operattonal impact on the environment

20

and ask all own-label supplers to reduce
their business footprint too,

*  Treating pcople fairly — We believe in
treating our custorners, Partners, farmers
and suppliers fairly as well as supporting
local charities and community groups
through our Community Matters and
Partner volunteering schemes, and

¢ Living well - We believe that eaung well
should be enjoyable We provide a wide
range of imagmative and nuiritious
choices to inspire people to eat more
healthily and are ahead of targets for salt
reduction

John Lews *Brimging Quality to Life’ 15

. A better way of doing busimess — Bringing
quality to life through a better way of
doing busmness, from our unique
Partnership structure 1o our commitment
to reducing our impact on the
environment,

*  Encouraging sustamnable Invng — Bringing
quality to hife threugh the products and
services we sell by ensuring they are
responsibly made and by helping
customers choose and use them 1 ways
that are more sustainable, and

*  Engagmg with our communiues —
Bringing quality to hfe through the
commumues we touch, whether local to
our shops, or to our supplers throughout
the world

Performance

We measure the Partnership’s performance
and therefore our eficctiveness m managig
CSR through strategic development,
monitonng programme tmplementation and
performance improverment, and external
perception and henchmarking Internal Audat
and external authorities have been used to
prowide independent assurance on our
performance

We remain commutted 1o openly
communicatimg our CSR actty, achievements
and challenges Detailled informauon 1s
inchuded within our Sustamability Report which
can be found on the Parmership website,

wunw johnlewispartnershify co uk/sustarnablityreport




We buld long-term
relationships unth
our farmers and
supphiers, which helps
our customers get the
best possible products
to helpr them to tive
more healthily

The Wartrose
Foundation supports
supplers and therr
farulies in three
Afrncan countnes

Watrose won a
‘Buig Sorwety” mward
Sfor us Communuty

Matters scheme
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Customers, products and suppliers

We are commutted to selling responsibly
sourced products, dealing fairly with suppliers,
engaging with and acting m the interests of our
customers and providing excellent value and
unrivalled customer service

In 2012/13

In Waitrose we achieved our target of
sourcing 100% RSPO Cerufied palm o1l
and palm kernel ol based ingredients and
derivatives m own brand products,

The mmaugural Waitrose way Suppher
Awards took place i April 2012 to
acknowledge the hard work and improving
environmental performance of our supply
base,

To enable customers to make an informed
choice about the products they buy John
Lews introduced a sustainable product
identfier to highhght products that will
help our customers lead more sustainable
hves and launched a ‘Made in UK’
identifier — a small union flag symbol - for
products made m this country,

Both John Lewis and Waitrose have
contnued to put the tools, processes and
frameworks 1n place 10 engage and
manage supphers, ensurig compliance
with our Responsible Sourcing Code of
Practice, which sets out requirements on
labour standards, worker welfare and the
environment,

The Partnershup’s two supply chamn
foundauons continued to support the
communities where our products are
sourced and made

Charitable and community investment

Being a ‘force for good’ in the commumnity has
always been part of the Partmership’s viston and
our Partners offer their tme to support local,
regional and natonal imtatves that help to
build more wvibrant, economucally sustainable
communities We exceeded our target to
contribute at least 1 per cent of pre-tax profits
to charitable and community activities
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Community Performance Indicators

% change

2013 2012 on last year

Total value of all
charitable and
community
investment
contributions® (£m) 116

109 67%

Community
investment as a % of
Profits before
Partnership Bonus
and tax (%) 28%

31% -7 7%

* Includes cash, in-kind, ime and management cosis as
defined by the London Benchmarking Group model and
also tncludes the donations for chantable purposes detarled
on page 32

Community programmes included

*  The Partnership donating over £11 6m 1n
2012/13 to a wide range of charities and
commuuty groups through Community
Martters Waitrose won a Big Society Award
for the scheme and Community Matters
was extended to all John Lewrs stores,

*  Communty Rooms in many of our John
Lewss stores and other locations make
space available free of charge to local
charines and community groups,

. The Partnership-wide payroll giving
scheme which 1s well established enabhng
Partners to make tax-free chariable
donations directly from their pay,

*  Volunteening enables our Partners to get
lll\'OlVed m our commumty acuvities and
remnforces our commitment not just to our
communities, but to our Partners as well
The Golden Jubilee Trustis the
Parinersh:p’s flagship employee
volunteering scheme where any Partner
can apply for a full- or part-ume
volunteering secondment with a UK
registered charity for up to six months In
2012/13, this scheme saw 17,494 hours
awarded to 55 Partners for 54 UK
chariues, and

*  John Lews shop Partners donaung
approximately 20,000 hours to
volunteering n their local communities




Waetrose Bracknell
shotrases a host
of buoduersity
Jeatures, mcluding
a ‘lwing’ wall
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Resources and relationshaps (coniinued)

Envwironment

As a muumum, the Partnership meets or
exceeds all relevant environmental legislation
Where no environmental legislation exists we
will seek to develop and implement our own
appropriate standards We take all reasonable
steps 10 Manage oOlUr OPEratuons so as to
mimmise our environmental impact and to
deliver excellence in environmental practice
4cross our business

Environment performance indicators

% change

2013 2012 on last year

Total greenhouse

gas (GHG)

ermssions {CO2}
Greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions Intensity
{CO:2 tonnes/Em sales)
Transport related CO:
emissions (tonnes/Em
sales)

Waitrose refrigeration
and cooling direct
emissions {CO: tonnes)
Proportion of generated
waste diverted

from landfilf (%)
Waitrose shop water
consumption (cubic
metres per sq ft trading
floor area)

John Lewis shop water
consumption

{cubic metres per sq ft
trading floor area)

557,017 528,532 54%

584 605 -3 5%

917 945 -3 0%

67,254 61,758 89%

92 89 3 4%

a13 013 0%

011 Q12 -83%

* Emussions data was revised for 2011/12 to take account
of updated emission factors 1ssued by DEFRA Our
emssions data has been caleulated using Defra-DECC
emussion factors, with the exception of those for Pure Plant
Oul berng used n a small number of Wautrose distribution
vehicles, certan refnigerants, and some emissions sources
assoaated unth our Leckford farm, data imcludes ermissions
resulting from UK owned and operated parts of the business
and significant emussions from thard-party operated
distnibution sues that are solely operated for Watrose
Emzsstons from energy were calculated using base data
collecied for the CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme Order 2010
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During 2012/13, we conunued to focus on our
carbon target to reduce operational carbon
dioxide (CO7) equuivalent emissions by 15% by
the end of 2020/21 against a 2010/11 baseline
Our operations are regulated under the CRC
Energy Efficiency scheme, which requires
organisations to monitor and report on their
energy usage

It was anucipated that emissions would nise for
the first couple of years before decreasing in
response to the implementauon of a range of
cmussions saving projects Our CO: equivalent
emussions grew by 5 4% mn 2012/13 to 557,017
tonnes, a period 1 which gross sales grew by
9 3% OQur Greenhouse Gas Emission intensity
therefore decreased by 3 5% n the same
period

To reduce our operational emissions the
Partmership 1 focussed on

. Energy
We are tackling energy reduction in two
key ways introducing technology 1o
reduce usage and supporung Partners in
operating our buuldings more efficiently
As an example, following successful trials,
LED lightung will now be specified as
standard throughout the Waitrose and
John Lews estate, delivering a 10%
reduction n electncity demand

+  Transport
Against our target to reduce transport CO:
equivalent emissions by 15% relatve to
wurnover by 2013/14, we have made an
improvement of 11 1% against our
2005/06 baseline Progress has been
achieved by sharing vehicle space with our
suppliers to avoiwd three milhon miles 1n
shop deliveries 1n a year, using telemancs
to monitor driver performance and
encourage more efficient driving styles,
himitng the speed of our heavy goods
vehicles to improve mules per gailon
performance, reducing miles driven using
smart scheduling, increasing the use of
double deck trailers and improving
loading efficiency, and using dual-fuel
technology where a percentage of the
ciesel requirement 1s replaced by bio-
methane or gas




We promote the
use of reusable
bags, encourage
sustamatnlity and
cut down on
waste and hiter

Wazitrose Bracknell
won a BREEAM
Award achiewing the
highest score in the
retaxl category
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Environment (conlinued)

*  Refngeration
Over the last four years, new water-cooled
refrigeration systems have been instailed
n 97 stores — the majonity of these into
new stores The reason for the increase in
leakage 15 that in 2012/13 there was a
smaller investment in the existing estate
than was oniginally planned In 2013/14
the predicted refurbishment spend has
doubled which m turn will mean a greater
level of water-cooled refrigeration and
therefore fewer CO: equivalent emussions
There has also been and will conunue to
be much work taking place to ensure that
the leakage across the estate 15 contamed
This will include containment work across
the worst leaking stores and auditors
proacuvely visiung branches to identfy
leaks and take action

. Waste
We diverted 92% of our operational waste
from tandfill last year, by segregaung more
recyclable matenal by source, recovering
encrgy from unavoidable food waste 1n an
mcreasing number of shops, and
processing general waste through
Matenals Recovery Facilies (MRFs) to
extract recyclable elements from the
residual, unsegregated waste We recycled
over 74% of our operauonat waste,
mncluding food waste, narrowly missing our
target of 75% by January 2013 We met
our target to divert all Waitrose shop-
generated food waste from landfill by
January 2013 (excluding Channel Islands)
and expect to divert John Lewis hospitality
food waste from landfill in 2013/14 In
March 2012, we launched our Food Waste
Hterarchy to help enable surplus food, fit
for consumption, to be donated locally,
rather than becoming waste

*  Water
The Partnership delivered an
improvement of 8 3% over the prior year
in John Lews 1in shop water consumpgion
per square foot of trading floor area and
Waitrose water consumpttion per square
foot of trading floor area remained the
same at 0 13m” per square foot of trading
floor area
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Responsible development

Our Responsible Development Framework
details our approach to the development and
refurbishment of our shops, offices and
warehouses which can be found on the
Partnership website

www johnleunsparinershap co uk/esr/our-
environment fresponsible-development html

During 2012/13 we commenced work to
update the framework to include social,
economic and environmental impacts of our
whole property portfolio rather than just
construction, and cover the whole-life
approach to buildings including acquusition,
design, build, fit-out, operations and
mamtenance, setung out not only what 1s
important to us i 2013/14, but for years to
come

John Lewis Partunership buildings represented
32 of the top 42 BREEAM (Building Research
Establishment Environmental Assessment
Method) rated retail builldings The
Partnership 1s the only retailer to have achieved
a BREEAM post-construction outstanding
rating

Packaging

We place over 135,000 tonnes of product
packaging on the market each year We
contribute towards mvestment in domestic
collection and public recyching centres,
promote packaging recyclability and explore
ways to opumise our packaging More
information 15 available on our website,

www johnleunspartnership co uk/csr/our-latest-
reportfour-environment/packaging himl.




Watrose 15
commutted to only
selling sustanably
sourced fresh fish
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Resources and relationships (continued)

Looking ahead

We will continue to pursue own brand product
mnovation and development and increase the
availability of sustainable products Waitrose
wil] continue to work towards 1ts targets for
100% cerufied sustainable soya and fish John
Lews will continue to improve the
sustainability of own-brand clothing, texules,
electrical apphances, and paper and wooden
products

We will also look to provide more
environmental product informaton to make 1t
easier for customers to make sustainable
choices John Lewis, for example, aims to
increase the number of products that carry the
Sustainable Product Idenufier and the Made 1n
UK 1dentifier We will actively encourage our
Buying teams to increase the number of 1ts
producis with a sustamabihity story and we wall
work with our suppliers to measure and reduce
their impact on the environment

Duning the year we began to understand the
ways 1 which we could measure the impact of
our community investment activittes We mtend
to develop this understanding and tral
methods for assessing impact

Conumung to drive improvements through our
carbon reduction programme will remain a key
focus and challenge We will also broaden our
response to chimate change by giving greater
constderaton to the posstble unpacts of the
changing chimate on our business
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Rusks and uncertainiies

Risks and uncertainties

Our risk management strategy 1s consistent with
our founder’s philosophy to run the
Partnership on sound principles of good
governance, to actively idenufy the risks being
run n the busmess and mutigate them to the
extent considered appropniate to safeguard the
Partnership, both 1ts business and 1ts
reputation We therefore adopt a disciphined
and proacuve approach to balancing risk and
reward during cur annual business planning
cycle An overview of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Partnership along with
mitigating actions mn place 1s set out below

Economic

As a retail business based and operatng
predominantly in the UK, the Partnership 1s
partcularly exposed to any economic
downturn in the UK which could affect
consumer confidence and therefore spending

The strength and diversity of the Waitrose and
John Lewis businesses and brands, alongside
our growing mulu-channel and online strategy,
help to miugate our economic risk 1n the
current retaill environment Qur range and
diversity of products and services bring us into
competition with a wide range of UK and
mternauonal retailers in largely mature market
segments with low underlying growth For this
reason we conunually focus on mantaming our
product quality, customer service and supplier
relationshaps, whalst retaining our competiuve
positton, including m value and pricing

Financial nsk

The principal financaal risk which we face 15 the
abihity to generate and access sufficient funds to
sausfy our busmess needs, to meet our
Partners’ expectations for Partnership Bonus
and to mugate against any adverse financial
impact resulting from risks crystallising The
other financial risks, together with miugations,
are covered 1n more detail below and 1n note
23 1o the accounts

. Funding and liquidity
Liquudity requirements are managed 1n
line with short and long term cash flow
forecasts hnked to our trading patterns,
business plans and budgets and reviewed
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against the Partnership’s debt portfolio
and maturity profile Funding levels are
managed to ensure that there 1s adequate
headroom available to mitigate the
funding and Lhiquidity risks Details of the
Partnership’s borrowings, together with
their interest rates and matunty profiles,
are provided m note 26 to the accounts

Interest rate risk

In order to manage the rnisk of interest rate
fluctuauons the Partnership targets a ratio
of fixed and floaung rate debt in line with
1ts treasury policy Exposures to interest
rate fluctuations are managed using
mterest rate dervatives Details of the
Partmership’s borrowings and interest rate
exposures are provided 1in note 26 to the
accoullts

Foreign currency risk

The Partnership uses derivauves o
Manage exposures Lo Movements in
exchange rates arising from transacuons
with foreign suppliers Foreign currency
exposures are hedged primarily using
forward foreign exchange contracts
Details are provided in note 23 to the
accounts

Credit nsk

The Partnership has no sigmficant
customer credit risk due to transactions
being principally of a high volume, low
value and short maturity Cash deposits
and other financial imstruments give rise
to credit nisk on the amounis due from
bank counterparues These risks are
managed by restricung such transactions
to counterparties with a credit rating not
less than a Standard & Poor’s equuvalent
‘A’ raung and designating appropnate
limuts to each counterparty

Capital risk

The Partnership maintains a capital
structure which 1s consistent with an
investment grade credit raung and
maintams a prudent level of gearing

Energy risk
The Partnership operates risk
management processes for the
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procurement of encrgy associated with 11s
activities including hedging energy pricing
exposure

¢ Insurable nsk
The Partnership’s captive insurance
company, JLP Insurance Limited based in
Guernsey, provides remsurance of the
Partnership’s employer’s, public and
vehicle third party hability msurances and
of the Partnership’s healthcare mmsurance
cover It also remnsures extended warranty
cover purchased by customers of John
Lewis

Pensions risk

Our pension obhigation represents our longest
term risk and 1s of critical importance We
continue to Maintain an epéen non-
contributory final salary defined benefit
pension scheme

The Partnership takes a long term view of its
pensions habilities but recognises that there are
significant risks from increasing longevity and
from volaulity and uncertamty in the
investment markets

The Pension Fund assets are held 1n separate
funds admumnstered by the Trustees, who
delegate day-to-day management of these funds
to a number of mvestment managers QOur
pension arrangements and funding position
are explammed 1n note 25 to the accounts We
have executed a defiat mitigaton strategy over
the past seven years including a one-off cash
contribunon made by the Partnership in
January 2013 The next formal actuanal
valuauons of the schemes will be as at

31 March 2013 Each month, we monitor asset
and lhability performance against both
accounung and actvarial assumpnions We also
have 4 formal framework, agreed with the
Trustees, for managing the Financial and
Investment Risk of the Penston Fund
proactively rather than retrospectively The
ligquudtty risk 1s managed by seeking to ensure
the annual contnbution to the Fund more than
covers 1ts outgomgs and that mcome generated
from the mvestment acuvities 1s more than
adequate to cover any short fall that may occur
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Partners’ trust and engagement

The commitment of Partners to the business 1s
a unique source of compeuuve advantage
which could be eroded by the loss of Partners’
trust and engagement The risk s mutigated by
the Parmership’s democrauc structure as sct
out in the Constitution This includes elected
councils and forums to hold senor
management responsible for decisions and
acuons, the Partnership Counall which actsas a
governing authority and holds the Chairman to
account, the Partners’ Counsellor department
which seeks to ensure that the Partnership 1s
true to the Constitution, and the Partnership’s
publications which ensure that Partners, as
co-owners, are given the informanon that they
need and all thewr questons answered by
management

Managing change

The successful delivery of key strategic projects,
such as the implementation of new systems, the
re-engimeermg of business processes or major
mfrastructure development, 15 of paramount
mmportance to the Partnership as such
mvestments improve the efficiency and
resihence of our operatons whilst provniding a
strong platform for future growth The
successful delivery of thesc projects depends on
the resources and skills sets available to the
Partnership Our Personnel strategy aims to
ensure that the Partnership possesses the
appropnate skills and resources requured o
deliver these projects Resources are
continually reviewed and aligned with the
business critical prionties Skills gaps are
addressed through traming and development
of Partmers When the required skills are not
available due to resource constramnts or their
highly specialised nature the Partnership will
recruit these externally

Competitor pricing

The retail landscape has become increasingly
competitive and as a result one of our key risks
15 margin erosion due to the pricing strategies
of our compeuntors In response we conunue (o
mvest 1 mnovation, service and our store
environment to maintain appeal, whilst also
focusing on operauonal improvements to help
drive further growth and pricing efficiencies
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Busmess Interruption

The Partnership faces a number of sigmificant
risks that have the potental to interrupt
business such as a major information loss,
farllure of mformation technology systems or
terrorist attack To monttor, manage and
miugate these risks and continue trading, we
have an approprnate and effecuve Busimness
Contnuity capabiiity with operatnional and
mformaton technology plans, processes,
procedures and organisauons The Head of
Operauconal Risk Management, who reports to
the Finance Director, 1s responsible for the
further development and maintenance of this
capabiliy

Talent management

The attracuon, development and retentuon of
talent are critical to the delivery of our
strategies and represents a key nisk for the
Partnership Our benefits and remuneration
are benchmarked annually to support
compettive packages and attract talent We also
have a Leadership Development Programme
that meets the succession and capability needs
of the business, and we are rolling out
improved performance and talent
management processes to enable robust career
development across the business, helping
Partners realise their full potential

Reputation

Any farlure i products and service would
damage our reputation resulting in a loss of
customer confidence The Partnership has
ngorous Product Safety tesung for supphers
and products All suppliers of own brand
product have their manufactunng sites assessed
and, where product safety 1s relevant, an
accredited thurd party tests these supphiers on
our behalf

Food safety 1s monitored throughout the supply
chain Our Food Technology department works
externally with supplers, government bodz1es
and trade associations to ensure all 1ssues of
food safety are monitored, addressed and
policies implemented Suppliers are audited
and reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure
they contnue 10 meet both legal and
Partnership criteria in terms of food safety,
legality, quality and brand
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Health and safety

The Partnership 1s committed to going about
1ts business in a way that avoids causing harm to
people or property, so far as 1s reasonably
practicable, and to promotng the wellbeing of
1ts workforce through 1ts extensive occupatonal
health service This commitment underpins
our approach to health and safety, with Board
level responsibility being carned by the
Director of Personnel, supported by specialist
technical advisers in safety and occupational
health employed within the divisions We
cannot expect to ehmnate health and safety
risk totally from the workplace but our current
priority 1s to ensure that management at all
levels know and understand the risks within
their areas of responsibility We review the
quality and effectiveness of our risk assessment,
incident investigation processes and the
completeness of our health and safety
management systems We seek to enhance our
systems to support a proactive approach in
meeting our commitments to the safety and
well-being of our Partners, suppliers and
customers

Input cost inflanon

Input cost price inflauon 1s a risk to our
businesses and as a result we closely monitor
the environment to ensure that we are
obtaining the best value, at a fair price, for
products and raw matenals that we source We
also continue te focus on delivering
operational efficiencies, to help offset these
increases, through a number of efficiency
programmes and imittatives In addition, input
cost inflauon 1s managed through our financial
hedging strategy for future foreign exchange
and energy pricing exposure

Other significant risks and uncertamnties

The Partnership also faces other, someumes
unforeseen, significant risks and uncertainties,
such as cnmmnal and public disorder incidents,
and the need to comply with new legislauve
and regulatory requirements The Partnership
Board proacuvely reviews other potental risk
areas and has the means to manage and
mitigate these risks where feasible
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Business review

Rusks and uncertarnties (continued)

Compliance statement

This review has been prepared n accordance
with secuon 417 of the Companies Act 2006
The review’s intent 1s to provide mformauon to
Partners and shareholders It should not be
relied upon by any other party or for any othcr
purpose

Where this review contains forward-looking
statements, these are made by the directors in
good faith based on the information available
to them at the ume of their approval of this
report These statements should be weated with
caution due to the imnherent uncertamties
underlying any such forward-looking
mformauon

Other information

Additional financial and non-financaal
mformation, including press releases and year
end presentauons, can be accessed on our
website, wuww johnlewispartnership co uk.
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Dairectors’ report

The directors present their report and the
audited financial statements for the group and
the Company for the year ended

26 January 2013

Principal acuvity, business review and future
developments

The principal acuwvity of John Lews plc 1s
retailing with the main trading operations
being the Waitrose and John Lewis businesses

The Company controls the entitues isted 1n
note 33, comprising 30 John Lewis department
stores, 9 John Lews at home stores,

Johnlew:s com, 255 Waitrose supermarkets, 35
Walitrose convenience stores, waitrose com and
business to business contracts 1n the UK and
abroad and ancillary manufacturing activities
A review of the business and likely future
developments i1s included and the Busmess
Review on pages 3 to 28, which forms part of
this Directors’ report

Key performance indicators and directors’
responsibilities

The key performance indicators and statement
of directors’ responsibilities are sct out on

pages 6 and 88 respecuvely

Governance of John Lews plc within the John
Lew:s Partnership

John Lews plc, as the principal trading
subsidiary of John Lews Partnershap plc, falls
within the governance auspices of the
Parmership, details of which can be found on
pages 36 to 50 of the annual report and
accounts of John Lews Partnership plc

Gong concern

The directors, after reviewing the group's
operaung budgets, investment plans, financing
arrangements and possible downsides, consider
that the Company and the group have adequate
financial resources to continue i operation for
the foreseeable future A full description of the
group’s business activities, financial posiuon,
cash flows, liqudity posiuon, committed
facihities and borrowing position, together with
the factors likely to affect its future
development and performance, 1s set out 1n the
Business Review The Company and group have,
at the date of this report, sufficient financing
available for their esumated requurements for
the foreseeable future and, accordingly, the
Directors are sausfied that it1s appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparng the
financial statements

i1

Fmancial risk management and nsurance,
treasury and tax policies

The Partnership Board of John Lewss
Partnership plc approves the Partnership’s
financial risk management, insurance, treasury
and tax policies, which are delegated to the
Parmership’s Group Finance Director to
implement and control Further details of the
Partnership’s financial risk management
arrangements are provided in the Business
Review and note 23 to the financial statements

Dmvidends

Dimvidends on Preference Stocks for 2013 were
£125,000 (2012 £125,000) The directors do
not recommend the payment of a dividend
(2012 £125,000)

Directors

The following directors served dunng the year
ended 26 January 2013

Date of Date of
Name Appointment Resignation
Charlie Mayfield
Martsa Casson 1 June 2012
Tracey Killen
Rachel Osborne 23 January 2013
Mark Price
Andy Street
Helen Weir 1 June 2012

Directors’ interests

Under the Consttution of the Partnership, the
directors, as employees of John Lewis plc, are
necessarily interested n the 612,000 Deferred
Ordinary Shares i John Lews Partnership plc
which are held in trust for the benefit of
employees of John Lewis plc and of certamn
oiher compamnes

No director has, or had, a material interest in
any contract or arrangement to which the
company or any subsidiary 1s, or was, a party
Employees

The Ceonstuitution of the Partnership provides
for the democratic involvement of Partners, or
employees, as co-owners of the business
Partners are provided with extensive
information on all aspects of business
operanons and are encouraged to take an
active interest 1n promoung its commercial
success The aim 1s to ensure that the co-owners
are given the information they need 1o be able
to decide whether the Chairman, the
Partnership Board and management are being
effecuve The Partnership’s democraucally
elected bodies, including the Partnership
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Dazrectors’ report

continued

Council and other elected councils and forums,
provide regular opportumuties at all levels of the
business for management to report to Partners
and for Partners to quesuon management
Addiuonally, there 1s an open sysiem of
jJournahsm, including the weekly Gazette,
which provides a means of sharimg mformanon
extensively with all Partners and contributes to
effective accountability

Partners recewve an annual Partnership Bonus
from the profits of the busmess Thisis a
shared bonus for shared effort

Diversity

The Partnership seeks to embrace diversity and
15 commitied to providing equal opportunties
for all in employment at all levels of the
organisation, regardless of individual differences
such as gender, age and ethnic origin

The Partnership recruuts people with
cisabilines to switable vacancies on merit
Where disabiity occurs during the period of
employment, every effort1s made to conunue
10 provide suitable employment with the
provision of appropriate traming

The Parwnership Board of John Lews
Parwmership plc recognises that balanced and
dwverse boards are effective boards One half of
the John Lews plc board are women

Corporate social responsibihity

The terms of the Parinership’s Consutuuon
clearly define the behaviour expected towards
customers, supphers, the environment, the wider
community and 1ts Partners Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) programmes and
governarnce structures have been developed based
on these provisions The principal responsibility
for managmng and coordinaung social, ethical and
environmental 1ssues rests with the Director of
Personnel of John Lewis Partnership plc More
detailed information on the Partnership’s CSR
pohcies and procedures 1s set out in the Busmcss
Rewview, and copres of its published CSR reports
can be found on the Partnership website,

www johnlewisparinership co uk

Social and community mvolvement and
political donations

The Parmnership donated £5,745,000 (2012
£4,494,000) for chantable purposes dunng the
year, compnsing £5,272,000 (2012 £4,049,000) for
welfare causes and £473,000 (2012 £445,000) for
music and the arts, learning and the environment
In addiuen, the Parmership provided substantial
financial and pracucal support to causes i the
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commumities where 1t trades, as set out on page 21
of the Business Review The Partnership made no
poliucal donauons

Supplier payment policy

The Partnership’s pohcy on the payment of its
suppliers 1s to agree terms of paymentin
advance and, provided a suppheer fulfils the
agreement, to pay promptly in accordance with
those terms The Partnership’s trade creditors
at 26 January 2013 were equivalent to 34 days
of average purchases (2012 27 days)

Capital Structure

A1 26 January 2013, the Company has in 1ssue
1,457,500 5% First Cumulauve Preference
Stock, 750,000 7% Cumulative Preference
Stock and bonds and 6,750,000 ordmary shares
of £1 each The nghts attaching to the
preference stock are set out in note 18 of the
these accounts

Each ordinary share carries the nght 1o one
vote at general meeting of the Company The
ordinary shares are wholly owned by John
Lews Partnership plc

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeung will be held at

12 45pm on 6 June 2013 at Partnership Services
Division head office, Spedan House, Doncastle
Road, Bracknell, Berkshire, RG12 8YA

Auditors and disclosure of information to
auditors

The auditers, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
have imdicated their willingness 1o conunue n
office and a resolution that they be
reappointed will be proposed at the Annual
General Meetng, together with a resolution to
authorise the directors to determine the
auditors’ remuneratuon

The directors of John Lewrs plc have taken all
the steps that they each ought to have 1aken as
directors in order to make themselves aware of
any informaton needed by the Partnership’s
auditors 1n connecton with preparing their
report and to establish that the auditors are
aware of that nformanon So far as the directors
are aware there 15 no such information of which
the Partmership’s auditors are unaware

Approved by the directors and signed on behalf
of the Board

Margaret Casely-Hayford T,
Director of Legal Services and WK%_*
Company Secretary

22 Apnil 2013
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Consolidated 1ncome
statement

for the year ended 26 January 2013

Year to Year to

26 January 28 January

2013 2012

Notes £m £m
2 Gross sales 9,541 3 8,729 5
2 Revenue 8,465 5 7,768 6
Cost of sales (5,640 1) (5,166 5)
Gross profit 2,8254 25921
Other operating iIncome 641 596

3 Operating expenses (2,439 8) {2,260 7)
2 Operating profit 4497 3910
4 Finance costs (81 0) (70 5)
4  Finance income 401 328
Profit before Partnership Bonus and tax 408 8 3533
Partnership Bonus (210 8) {165 2)

5  Profit before tax 1980 1881
&  Taxation (46 5) (519)
Profit for the year 1515 1362

Consolidated statement of
comprehensive expense

for the year ended 26 January 2013

Year to Year to

26 January 28 January

2013 2012

Notes £m £m
Profit for the year 1515 1362

Other comprehensive expense

25 Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes (326 3) (254 8)
&  Movement in deferred tax on pension schemes 289 18 4
&  Movement tn current tax on pension schemes 346 65
Net gain on cash flow hedges 37 02
Total comprehensive expense for the year (107 6) (63 5)

34




John Lewis ple annual report and accounts 2013

Consolidated balance sheet

as al 26 January 2013
2013 2012
Notes Em £m
MNon-current assets
11 Intangible assets 2137 164 3
12 Property, plant and equipment 38209 3,798 4
15 Trade and other recevables* 558 513
22 Deferred tax assets 256 -
4,116 0 40140
Current assets
14 Inventories 5140 465 2
15 Trade and other receivables™® 1919 2132
Current tax recewvable 31 -
24 Denvative financial mstruments 42 27
16 Cash and cash equivalents 5344 550 8
1,247 6 1,2319
Total assets 5,363 6 52459
Current habilities
18 Borrowings and overdrafts (156 3) (302 1)
19 Trade and other payables {1,451 3) (1,207 3)
Current tax payable - 92
20 Finance lease liabilrites (30) (0 6)
21 Prowisions {110 0) (90 &)
24 Denvative financial instruments {0 6} (2 5)

(1,721 2} {1,612 3)

Non-current liabilities

18 Borrowings (627 7) {726 7)

19 Trade and other payables (119 3) (85 8}

20 Finance lease liabilities (35 9} (26 4)

21 Provisions (136 2) (115 6)

Deferred tax habilities - (32 1)

25 Retirement benefit obhgatrons (822 1) (638 1}

(1,741 2) (1,624 7)

Total iabilities (3,462 4) (3,237 0}

Net assets 1,901 2 2,008 9
Equity

27 Share capital 67 67

Share premium 03 03

Other reserves 53 16

Retained earnings 1,888 9 2,000 3

Total equity 1,901 2 2,008 9

*The comparauves have been represented in respect of current and non-current trade and other recenvables as
explained i note 1

The financial statements on pages 34 to 87 were approved by the Board of Directors on
22 April 2013 and signed on 1ts behalf by

Charlie Mayfield N C{L‘_./‘ M
Helen Werr L\j\
Directors

John Lewss plc Registered number 00233462

* P Do v »
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Balance sheet of the company

as at 26 January 2013

2013 2012
Motes £m £m
Non-current assets
11 Intangible assets 1287 1377
12 Property, plant and equipment 877 0 8799
13 Investments 8543 966 7
15 Trade and other receivables 46 4 410
22 Deferred tax asset 1779 1291
2,0843 2154 4
Current assets
14 inventones 2939 2635
15 Trade and other receivables 863 845
Current tax receivable 47 7 508
24  Derivative financial instruments 42 27
16 Cash and cash equivalents 424 9 459 5
857 0 8610
Total assets 29413 3,0154
Current habihties
18 Borrowings and overdrafts (154 7) {301 0)
19 Trade and other payables (1,154 3) {993 7)
20 Finance lease liabihties (0 2) o2
21 Provisions (96 9) {80 3)
24 Derwvative financial instruments (0.6) (2 5)
(1,406.7) (1,377 7)
Non-current liabihities
18 Borrowings {627 7) (726 7)
19 Trade and other payables (104 2) (75 9)
20 Finance lease labilities (14 3) (14 5)
21 Provisions {118 2} {100 )
25 Retirement benefit obligations (714 1) (543 5)
(1,578 5) (1,460 6)
Total habilities (2,985 2) (2,838 3)
Net (habilities)/assets (43 9) 177 1
Equity
27 Share capital 67 67
Share premium 03 03
Other reserves 39 02
(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings (54 8) 169 9
Total equity (43 9) 177 1

The financial statements on pages 34 to 87 were approved by the Board of Directors on

22 April 2013 and signed on 1ts behalf by

Charlie Mayfield
Helen Weir
Directors
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Consolidated statement of changes
in equaty

for the year ended 26 January 2013

Share Share Capital Hedging  Retained Totat
capital premium reserve reserve  earnings equity

Notes Consolidated £m £m £m £m £m £m

Balance at 29 January 2011 67 c3 14 - 20641 20725

Profit for the year - - - - 1362 1362
25  Actuanal loss on defined benefit

pension schemes - - - - (254 8) (254 8)
6 Tax on above items recogmised

in other comprehensive expense - - - - 549 549

Fair value gains on cash flow

hedges - - - 04 - 04

— Transfers to inventones - - - (0 2) - (02}

Dividends - - - - {01) (01}

Balance at 28 January 2012 67 03 14 02 2,0003 2,0089

Profit for the year - - - - 151 5 1515
26  Actuanal loss on defined benefit

pensicn schemes - - - - (326 3) (3263)
6 Tax on above rtems recognised

in other comprehensive expense - - - - 635 635

Fair value gains on cash flow

hedges - - - 03 - 03

- Transters to inventories - - - 34 - 34

Dividends - - - - 01 01

Balance at 26 January 2013 67 03 14 39 1,8889 1,9012

Retained earnings comprise £1,481 5 (2012 £1,590 8m) of distributable and £407 4m (2012
£409 5m) of non distributable reserves, arising on the revaluation of freehold and long

leasehold properties prior to 31 January 2004
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Company statement of changes

i equity

Jor the year ended 26 January 2013

Share Share  Hedging Retained Total
capital premium reserve  earnings equity

Notes Company £m Em £m £m £m

Balance at 29 January 2011 67 03 - 2903 297 3

Profit for the year - - - 754 754
25  Actuanal loss on defined benefit

pension schemes - - - {2515) (2515)
6 Tax on above items recognised

in other comprehensive expense - - - 558 558

Fair value gains on cash flow hedges - - 04 - 04

- Transfers to inventories - - ©2) - (0 2)

Dividends - - - 01) 01)

Balance at 28 January 2012 67 03 02 1699 177 1

Profit for the year - - - 150 150
25  Actuanal loss on defined benefit

pension schemes - - - (3062) (3062)
6 Tax on above items recognised

in other comprehensive expense - - - 66 6 66 6

Fair value gains on cash flow hedges - - 03 - 03

- Transfers to inventories - - 34 - 34

Divigends - - - 01 (01)

Balance at 26 January 2013 67 03 39 (548) (43 9)
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Statement of consolidated
cash flows

for the year ended 26 January 2013

Year to Year to
26 January 28 January
2013 2012
Notes £m £Em
28 Cash generated from operations 9911 774 0
Net taxation paid (52 9) {33 2)
Partnership Bonus pard (164 3) (194 5)
Additronal contnbution to the Pension Scheme (125 0) -
Finance costs paid {4 9) (2 3)
Net cash generated from operating activities 6440 544 0
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (261 S) (425 7)
Purchase of intangible assets (96 5) (88 4)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 19 118
Finance income received 19 24
Net cash used in investing activities (354 2) (499 9}
Cash flows from financing activittes
Finance costs paid in respect of bonds (56 8) (54 7)
Payment of capital element of finance leases {35) (07}
Payments to preference shareholders (01) (0 1)
Cash inflow from borrowings - 547
Cash outflow from borrowings (242 0) -
Net cash used in financing activities (302 4) (0 8)
{Decrease)/increase in net cash and cash equivalents (12 6) 433
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginming of year 490 7 447 4
Net cash and cash eguivalents at end of year 478 1 4907
16 Net cash and cash equivalents compnse
Cash 1200 836
Short term deposits 4144 467 2
Bank overdrafts {56 3) (60 1)
478 1 490 7
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Statement of company

cash flows
Jor the year ended 26 January 2013

Year to Year to
26 January 28 January
2013 2012
Notes £m £m
28 Cash generated from operations 457 8 3193
Net taxation received/(paid) 118 (15 1)
Partnership Bonus paid (73 8} (94 2)
Additional contribution to the Pension Scheme {125 0} -
Finance costs paid (35 (1 4)
Net cash generated from operating activities 267 3 208 6
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (101 5) (142 4)
Purchase of intangible assets {64 8) (66 7)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 11 157
Investment in subsithary oL -
Dividends (paid)/received {01 12
Loans advanced to group companies 1651 215
Finance income received 18 24
Net cash generated from/(used 1n} investing activities 15 (168 3}
Cash flows from financing actvities
Finance costs paid in respect of bonds {56 8) (54 7}
Payment of capital element of finance leases 02) 02)
Payments to preference shareholders (01) on
Cash inflow from borrowings - 54 7
Cash outflow from borrowings (242 0) -
Net cash used n from financing actwities {299 1) {03
{Decrease)increase in net cash and cash equivalents (30 3) 400
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 400 5 3605
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3702 4005
16 Net cash and cash equivalents compnse
Cash 456 245
Short term deposits 3793 4350
Bank overdraft {54 7) (59 0)
3702 4005
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Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies

Accounting convention and basis of consohdation

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convennon, with the exception of certain
land and buildings which are included at their revalued amounts and financial assets and financial
habites (including dernvative instruments) valued at fair value through profit and loss, and n
accordance with Internauonal Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporung under
IFRS The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the company and all

its subsidiary undertakings

The preparation of consohidated financial statements in conformity with International Finanaal
Reporung Standards requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and habilies at the date of the consohdated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the year Although these estmates are based
on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ulumately may
differ from those estimates

The comparatives have been re-presented in respect of the split of recewvables on credit sale
agreements for the Partnership’s car finance scheme for Partners between current trade and other
recervables and non-current trade and other recervables, to be on a consistent basis to the current
year end For the year ended 28 January 2012 £2 5m has been reported 1n non-current trade and
other recewables This was previously reported in current trade and other receivables

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated

The following standards, amendments and mterpretauons were adopted by the group from
29 January 2012 and have not had a sigmficant impact on the group's profit for the year, equity or
disclosures

- Amendment to IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’ on deferred tax

There are a number of new accounting standards and amendments to existing standards that
have been published and are applicable for the group’s accounung periods beginning on or after
27 January 2013 or later penods, and which the group has not adopted early These are as follows

— [IFRS 10 *Consolidated financial statements’,

— [IFRS 11 ‘Joint arrangements’,

— [IFRS 12 ‘Dhsclosure of interests in other enutes’,

— 1FRS 13 *Fair value measurement’,

- Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Finanaial instruments Disclosures’ on derecogmtion’,
- Amendment to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of financial statements’,

-~ Amendment te IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’, and

- Amendment to IAS 32 ‘Financial instruments presentation’

Except for the Amendment to IAS 19, these are not expected to have a matenal impact on the
group’s profit or equuty for future years, but may affect disclosures The Amendment to [AS 19 will
replace the expected return on pension scheme assets and the interest cost on pension scheme
habiliies with a net interest expense or income calculated by applying the hability discount rate to
the net defined benefit asset or habiluy This will result in an increase 1n finance costs but will not
mmpact total equity For 2013, had the Amendment been applied, the net finance income

recognised on defined benefit reurement schemes of £38 2m would have been a net finance cost
of £31 6m
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Notes to the accounts

continued

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Gross sales and revenue

Gross sales are the amounts recervable by the group for goods and services supplied to customers,
net of discounts but includimg sale or return sales and VAT Revenue 1s gross sales excluding sale
or return sales and VAT

Sales of goods and services are recognised as revenue when the goods have been delivered or the
services rendercd Revenue in respect of ‘sale or return sales” which represents concession income
1s stated at the value of the margin that the group recewes on the transacuzon Revenue 1s also net
of Partner discounts and VAT Revenue is recogrised in respect of sales under bill and hold
arrangements when the goods are segregated for the customer’s benefit at their request, and
made available for delivery Sales of gift vouchers are treated as future habihues, and revenue s
recognised when the gift vouchers are redeemed against a later transaction Certain companes
within the group sell products with a night of return, and experience 1s used to estmate and
provide for the value of such returns at the ume of sale

I'he business 1s predominantly carred out 1n the Umited Kingdom and gross sales and revenue
dermve almost entirely from that source

Inventory valuation

Inventory s stated at the lower of cost, which 1s computed on the basis of average unit cost, and
net realisable value Inventory excludes merchandise purchased by the group on a sale or return
basis, where the group does not have the nisks and rewards of ownership

Employee benefits

The group’s principal reurement benefit scheme 15 a defined benefit pension fund with assets held
separately from the group The cost of providing benefits under the scheme 15 determined using
the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method, which measures the habihity based on service
completed and ailowing for projected future salary increases The current service cost, which 1s
the increase 1n the present value of the renrement benefit obligauon resulung from employee
service 1n the current year, and gamns and losses on settlements and curtailments, which anse on
transactions that ehiminate part or all of the benefits provided or when there are amendments to
terms such that a significant element of future service will no longer qualify for benefits or will
quabfy only for 1educed benefits, are included within operating profit in the consohidated income
statement Past service costs are similarly included where the benefits have vested, otherwise they
are amortsed on a straight-lme basis over the vestung period

The expected return on assets of funded defined benefit pension plans and the imputed mterest
on pension plan habihuies are included in nct finance costs

Differences between the actual and expected return on assets, changes in the returement benefit
obligauon due to expentience and changes in actuanal assumpuons are mcluded as actuanal gains or
losses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive expense and income n full in the period m
which they arise

There are a number of unfunded pension Labilites, where the actuanally assessed costs of pronding
the benefit are charged to the mcome statement There are no assets supporung these arrangements

The group also operates a defined contribuuon scheme Contributions are charged 1n the income
statement as they fall due The group has no further obligatons once the contibuuons have been
made

The group has a scheme to provide up to six months paid leave after 25 years’ service (long leave) The
costs of providing the benefits under the scheme 1s determined actianally The current service cost 1s
mcluded within operaung profit m the consolidated income statement The financing ¢ lements of long
leave are included in finance costs in the consohdated income statement

Property valuation

The group’s frechold and long leasehold properues were last valued by the directors, after consultauon
with CB Richard Ellis, Chartered Surveyors, at 31 January 2004, at fair value  I'hese values have been
imncorporated as deemed cost, subject 1o the requirement to test for imparrment, in accordance with
IAS 36 The group decided not to adopt a policy of revaluation since 31 January 2004

Other assets arc held at cost
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Depreciation

No depreciation 1s charged eon frechold land and assets in the course of construction Depreciation
1s calculated for all other assets to write off the cost or valuation, less residual value, on a straight
hine basis over themr expected useful hfe, at the following rates

Freehold and long leaschold buildings — 2% to 4%

Other leaseholds — over the shorter of the useful economic hife and the remainung penod of the
lease

Bulding fixtures — 2 5% to 10%

Fixtures and fitings (including vehicles and infermation technology equipment) - 10% to 33%

Property residual values are assessed as the price 1n current terms that a property would be
expected to realise, if the builldings were at the end of their useful economic life The assets’
residual values and useful lives are reviewed at least at each balance sheet date

Leased assets

Assets used by the group which have been funded through finance leases on terms that transfer 10
the group substantuially all the risks and rewards of ownership are capitalised at the incepuon of
the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower; at the present value of the mimmum lease
payments Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
hiability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaming balance of the hability The
interest element of finance lease rentals 1s charged to the income statement Capitahsed leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the esumated useful life of the asset or the lease term

Leases where the group does not retain substantally all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset are classified as operatng leases Operating lease rental payments, other than contingent
rentals, are recognised as an expense n the imncome statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease term Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense 1 the income statement when
ncurred

Lease premiums and inducements are recognised in current and non-current assets or habihines as
appropnate, and amortised or released on a straight-hne basis over the lease term

Sub-lease income 15 recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the sub-lease term, less
allowances for situations where recovery 1s doubtful

Taxation

The charge for corporatien tax is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are
not taxed or are disallowed It 1s calculated using tax rates in legislation that has been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax 1s accounted for using the balance sheet liability method n respect of
temporary differences ansing from differences between the 1ax bases of assets and habihties

and their carrying amounts in the financial statements Deferred tax arising from the imitial
recognition of an asset or habihty 1n a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the
time of the transacuon affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, 15 not recognised

In principle, deferred tax habiliues are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deducuble temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
ts reahised or the hability 1s settled Deferred tax 1s charged or credited 1n the mcome statement,
except when 1t relates to 1items credited or charged to other comprehensive expense, in which case
the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in other comprehensive expense
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Notes to the accounts

continued

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets, comprising both purchased and internally developed computer software, are
carried at cost less accumulated amortsation and impairments The cost of internally developed
software, mcluding all directly attnibutable costs necessary to create, produce and prepare the
software for use, 15 capitalised where the development meets the criteria for capitalisation required
by IAS 38 Internally developed software assets that are not yet in use are reviewed at each
reporung date 1o ensure that the development sull meets the criterta for capitalisation, and 1s not
expected to become impaired or aboruve Once available for use, the purchased or mnternally
developed software 1s amorused on a straight line basis over 1ts useful economic bife, which 1s
deemed to be between 3 and 10 years

Financial mnstruments

The group uses dervauve financial instruments to manage 1ts exposure to fluctuavons in foreign
exchange rates and nterest rates Dervative financial instruments used by the group include forward
currency contracts Hedge accounting has been adopted for derivauve financial instruments where
possible Such dervative financial instruments are measured at fair value The fair value of a
dervanve financial instrument represents the difference between the value of the outstanding
contracts at their contracted rates and a valuavon calculated using the forward rates of exchange
and interest rates prevailing at the balance sheet date

In order to qualify for hedge accounung, the relationship between the item being hedged and the
hedging instrument 1s documented m advance of entering mto the hedge, and assessed to show that
the hedge will be highly effective on an ongoing basis This effecuveness tesung 1s reperformed at
each period end to ensure that the hedge remains highly effective

Hedge accounung 1s discenunued when the hedging instrument matures, 15 sold, terminated
or exercised, the designation 1s revoked or 1t no longer quahfies for hedge accounung For
dervatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gans or losses arisig from changes
n fair value are taken directly to the income statement

A cash flow hedge 15 a hedge of the exposure to variability of cash flows that are either attributable
10 a parucular nsk associated with a recognised assct or hability, or a ighly probable forecast
transacuion The effective portuon of changes in the mtrisic fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised 1n equity All other changes in fair
value are recognised immediately in the income statement within other gans or losses Amounts
accumulated 1n equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods when the hedged 1tem
affects profit or loss Derivauve financial instruments qualifying for cash flow hedge accounung
are principally forward currency contracts

Borrowings

Borrowings are mnually recognised at faur value net of transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortsed cost Where there 1s an effecuve related fair value hedge, the movement in
the fair value atnbutable to the hedged risk 1s separately disclosed

Loan arrangement costs n respect of debt are capitalised and amorused over the life of the debt
al a constant rate Finance costs are charged 1o the income statement, based on the effectve
interest rate of the associated borrowings

Insurance

The group’s capuve insurance company, JLP Insurance Limited, provides remsurance of the
group’s employer’s, public and vehicle third party habiliy insurances, and of the group’s
healthcare insurance cover It also insures ServicePlan Limited, and remsures Landmark Insurance
Company Limited, third party providers of extended warranty products to customers of John
Lewis For the habihity mnsurances, the results of each underwnung year are estimated at the year
end using independent actuanal assessments, when any profits or losses arising are recognised
Other classes are also accounted for on an annual basis, with unearned premiums attributed

to unexpired pertods of insurance at the year end
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Impairment

Assets that are subject to amorusauon or depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss

1s recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount,
the latter being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use Value 1n use
calculations are performed using cash flow projections, discounted at a pre-tax rate which reflects
the asset specific risks and the ume vaiue of money

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has an obligation 1n respect of a past event, 1t 1s more
likely than not that payment {or a non cash settlement) will be required to settle the obligauon
and where the amount can be rehably esimated Provisions are discounted when the time value
of money 1s considered materal

Partnership Bonus

Partnership Bonus, determined m relaton to the results for the previous financial year, 15 paid to
Partners each March No hability 1s recorded for Partnership Bonus at the half year as the majority
of the group’s profit 1s earned 1n the second half year and, until the annual profit1s known, 1t 1s
not possible to make an estmate of the hability A hability for this bonus 15 included in the year
end accounts, with the amount confirmed by the Partnership Board shortly after the year end

Offsetung

Balance sheet netting only occurs to the extent that there 1s the legal ability and intention to settle
net As such, bank overdrafts are presented in current habilities to the extent that there 1s no
mtenuon lo offset with any cash balances

Foreign currencies

Transacuions denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate at the date

of the ransacuon Foreign exchange gains and losses resulung from the setlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and hiabihtes
denominated 1nn foreign currencies are recognised 1in the income statement, except when deferred
in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term
deposits with maturiues of less than 90 days In the consolidated cash flow statement, net cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash and cash equivalents, as defined above, net of bank overdrafts

Net debt
Net debt incorporates the group's borrowings, bank overdrafis, fair value of denvatives and
obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are imtially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amorused cost
less allowances for situations where recovery 1s doubtful Such allowances are based on an
individual assessment of each receivable

Investments
Investments are valued at cost, less allowances for tmpairment impairment reviews are performed
annually

Trade payables
Trade payables are inmally recogmsed at fair value and subsequently measured at amorused cost
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Notes to the accounts

continued

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting esumates and judgements

Esumates and judgements are conunually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other relevant factors, including expectauons of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the aircumstances

The preparauon of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions concernng the future The resulung accounung estimates will, by definition,
be hikely to differ from the related actual resulis The estimates and assumptions that have
a sigmficant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
habilities wathin the next financial year are discussed below

Retirement benefits

Pension accounting requires certain assumptions to be made in order to value our
obhigauons and to determine the charges to be made to the wmcome statement  These figures
are parucularly sensitive to assumpuons for discount rates, mortality, mflauon rates and
expected long-term rates of return on assets Details of assumptions are given 1 note 25

Prouvisions and habilities

Provisions and habihites recognised at the balance sheet date are detailed in notes 19 and 21
include amounts for long leave, unredeemed gift vouchers, service guarantee costs,
customer refunds, msurance claims, reorganisatuon costs, accrued hohday pay and property
related costs

Although provisions and liabilities are reviewed on a regular basis and adjusted 1o reflect
management’s best current esumates the judgemental nature of these items means that
future amounts settled may be different from those provided

Imparrment

The group 15 required to test whether assets in use in operations have suffered any
mmparrment The recoverable amounts of cash generatng units have been determined based
on the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use The caleulauon of value 1n use
requires the esumation of future cash flows expected (o anse from the contimung operation
of the cash generating unit and the selecuon of a sunable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value Given the degree of subjecuvity involved, actual outcomes could vary
significantly from these esumates

2 Segmental reporting

In accordance with IFRS 8 *Operaung Segments’, an operating segment 1s defined as a
business acuvity whose operating results are reviewed by the chief operaung decision maker
(*CODM’) and for which discrete information is available The group’s CODM 1s the
Partnership Board

The group’s operating segments have been identfied as John Lews, Waitrose and Corporate
and other Corporate and other principally includes corporate overheads, transformaton
costs and Partnership Services The operaung profit of each segment s reported after
charging relevant corporate and shared service costs based on the business segments’ usage
of corporate and shared service facihiuies and services
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2 Segmental reporting (continued)

Comorate
Waitrose John Lewis and other Group
2013 £m £m £m £m
Gross sales 5,763 9 3,777 4 - 9,541 3
Adjustment for sale or return sales - {134 6) - (134 6)
Value added tax (347 8) (593 4) - (941 2)
Revenue 54161 3,049 4 - 8,4655
Operating profit excluding property profits 2923 2167 (59 3) 449 7
Property profits - - - -
QOperating profit 292 3 216 7 (59 3) 4497
Finance costs - - (81 0) (81 0)
Finance income - - 401 401
Partnership Bonus - - (210 8) (210 8)
Profit before tax 292 3 216 7 (311 0) 198 0
Taxation - - (46 5) (46 5)
Profit after tax 292 3 2167 (357 5) 1515
Segment assets 2,624 7 1,770 2 968 7 5,363 6
Segment habilities (553 7} (648 1) (2,2606) (3,4624)
Net assets 2,071 0 1,1221 (1,2919) 11,9012
Other segment items
— Depreciation 142 7 96 7 157 2551
— Amortisation 154 7% 146 419
— Caprtal expenditure — property, plant and
equipment 166 9 102 9 110 2808
— Capital expenditure — intangble assets 313 41 4 234 961
— Movement tn provisions 42 63 295 400
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continued

2 Segmental reporting (continued)

Corporate
Waitrose  John Lewis and other Group

2012 £m £m £m £m
Gross sales 5,400 4 33291 - 8,729 5
Adjustment for sale or return sales - (1207 - {1207
Value added tax (328 1} (522 1) - (850 2}
Revenue 50723 2,686 3 - 7,758 6
Operating profit excluding property profits 260 6 156 4 (27 9) 3895
Property profits - 15 - 15
Operating profit 260 6 157 9 (27 5) 3910
Finance costs - - (70 5) (70 5)
Finance income - - 328 328
Partnership Bonus - - (165 2) (165 2}
Profit before tax 2606 1579 (230 4) 1881
Taxation - - (51 9 {51 9}
Profit after tax 260 6 157 9 (282 3) i362
Segment assets 27139 1,648 5 883 5 5,245 9
Segment liabilities (591 6) (5388} (2,1066) (3,237 0
Net assets 2,122 3 1,1097 {1,2231) 2,0089
Other segment items
- Depreciation 1340 914 156 2410
— Amortisation 14 3 107 73 323
- Capital expenditure — property, plant and

equipment 247 6 1538 280 429 4
— Capital expenditure — intangible assets 450 286 14 8 884
- Movement In provisions 14 (14) 83 83
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3 Operating expenses

2013 2012
£m £m
Branch operating expenses 1,9017 1,796 9
Administrative expenses 5381 463 8
2,4398 2,2607
4 Net finance costs
2013 2012
£m £m

Finance costs
Interest payable on

Bank loans and overdrafts 21 26

Other loans repayable within 5 years 136 122

Other lpans repayable in more than 5 years 413 43 8
Finance lease interest payable 17 12
Amortisation of 1ssue costs of bonds 12 10
Preference dividends 01 g1
Finance costs 1n respect of borrowings 600 609
Farr value measurements and other 06 31
Net finance costs ansing on other employee benefit schemes 204 65
Total finance costs 810 705
Finance income
Interest receivable (19 {2 4)
Finance income In respect of cash and short term investments {19 (24)
Fair value measurements and other - (0 1)
Net finance income ansing on defined benefit refirement schemes (note 25) (382 (303
Total finance income (40 1) (32 8)
Net finance costs 409 377
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Notes to the accounts

conbinued

4 Net finance costs {continued)

2013 2012
£m £m
Finance costs in respect of borrowings 600 60 9
Finance income 1n respect of investments (19 (2 4)
Net finance costs in respect of borrowings and investments 581 585
Net fairr value measurements and other 06 30
Net finance income arising on defined benefit retirement schemes (38 2} (30 3)
Net finance costs arising on other employee benefit schemes 204 65
Net finance costs 409 377
5 Profit before tax
2013 2012
£m £m
Profit before tax 1s stated after charging/(crediting} the following
Staff costs (note 10) 1,6050 14759
Depreciation — owned assets 2517 2404
Depreciation — assets held under finance leases 34 06
Amortisation of intangible assets 419 323
Profit on sale of property - (15)
Loss on disposal of other plant and equipment and
intangible assets 61 54
Inventory - cost of inventory recognised as an expense 5,6401 5,166 5
Reorganisation costs 162 21
Operating lease rentals
— land and buitdings 127 9 i134
— ptant and machinery 02 04
Sub lease mncome
- land and buldings (6 1) (59}
Fees payable to group’s auditors and 1ts associates for the audit of
parent company and consolidated financial statements 04 03
Fees payabie to group's auditors and its associates for other services
— the audit of the company’s substdiaries 04 c4
— tax advisory services 01 -
- other non-audit services 01 02

In addition to the above, the group’s auditors also acted as auditors 10 the group’s pension
schemes The aggregate fee for audit services to the pension schemes durmg the year was

£53,900 (2012 £49,500)

Conungency rents expensed during the year were £2 7m (2012 £2 6m) Contingency

rents are determined based on store revenugs
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6 Taxation

2013 2012
Analysis of tax charge £m £m
Corporation tax — current year 775 67 3
Corporation tax — prior years (2 2) {12}
Total current tax charge 753 661
Deferred tax — current year (28 6) (180}
Deferred tax — prior years (0 2) 38

465 519

2013 2012
Tax credited to other comprehensive expense £m £m
Movement In current tax on pension schemes (34 6) (6 5)
Movement In deferred tax on pension schemes (28 9) (48 4)

(63 5) (54 9)

The tax charge for the year 1s lower (2012 higher) than the standard corporation tax rate of

24 33% (2012 26 33%) The differences are explained below

2013 2012
£m £m

Profit befere tax 1880 1881
Profit before tax multiphed by standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 24 33% (2012 26 33%) 48 2 495
Effects of
Adjustment to current tax in respect of prior years (2 2) (12)
Restatement of deferred tax balances for reduction in the

corporation tax rate to 23% (2012 25%) (13 6) {14 4)
Depreciation on assets not qualifying for tax relief 136 128
Difference between accounting and tax base for land and buildings 20) 19
Adjustment to deferred tax in respect of prior years 02) 38
Sundry disallowables 27 33
Total tax charge 46 5 519
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continued

6 Taxation (continued)

The Finance Act 2013 reduced the main rate of corporanon tax from 25% to 23% from

1 April 2013 Further reductions 1o the main rate are proposed in the Finance Bill 2013 to
reduce the rate by 2% n 2014 and 1% 1n 2015 to 20% from | April 2015 The 2% reducuon
to 23% has been substanuvely enacted at the end of the year, and thercefore 1s reflected n
the consohdated financial statements

The effect of the 2% rate change on the current year (2012 2% rate change) was to increase
the deferred tax liabihity by £0 Bm (2012 £4 Om decrease) with a £14 2m charge (2012

£10 4m charge) being taken directly to reserves and a £13 6m tax credit (2012 £14 4m
credut) to the income statement Adjustments in future years are expected to be higher than
the year ended 26 January 2013, assuming reductons proposed are substanuvely enacted
annually and a comparable level of deferred tax

7 Profit and loss of the company for the financial year

As permutied by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, John Lews plc has not presented
1Its own 1ncome statement or statement of comprehensive expense The result dealt with in
the accounts of the company amounted to £15 Om profit (2012 £75 4m profit), including an
exceptional gain of £n1l (2012 £78 4m) on the hquudation of subsidiary undertakings

8 Dwidends
2013 2012
£m £m
Equity interests
Ordinary shares
(20 pence per share, 2012, 20 pence per share} 01 01

The ordmary shares are all held by the parent company John Lewis Partnership ple which 1s
registered in England and Wales

9 Directors' emoluments

An executive director with an external appomntment may not retain any earnings from such
appomtment unless 1t dates from before he or she joined the Partnership
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9 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Highest pa:d director

The total emoluments for the year ended 26 January 2013 and 28 January 2012 of the
Chairman, who was also the highest paid director, were £1,478,000 (2012 £1,447,000),
compnising pay of £825,000 (2012 £821,000), Parinership Bonus of £140,000 (2012
£115,000), pension supplement in heu of further defined pension accrual of £495,000
(2012 £493,000) and benefits with a cash value of £18,000 {2012 £18,000)

Total emoluments paid to directors were £5,605,000 (2012 £5,330,000)

Penston arrangements

All the directors, except one, have ceased to accrue further pension benefits in the
Partnership’s pension schemes including the semior pension scheme Their accrued pensions
increase 1n line with exther price inflauon or future pay increases, depending on therr
individual arrangements Where there are any accrued defined benefit pensions remaming
on an unfunded basis, the Partnership has made provision for the associated hiability

The Chairman’s aggregate defined benefit pension entitlement from the age of 60 accrued
at the end of the year was £224,000 per annum (2012 £223,000 per annum) There was no
increase n the accrued entitlement above consumer price inflavon during the year

Contracts of employment for the directors provide for a notice penod of between six months
and one year No contract contains a provision regarding early terminaton compensaton

10 Employees

During the year the average number of employees of the group was as follows

Consolidated 2013 2012
John Lews 29,300 28,200
Waitrose 51,000 48,400
Other 1,600 2,100

81,900 78,700
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continued

10 Employees {continued)

Employment and related costs were as follows

2013 202
Consolidated £m £m
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 1,1623 11,0963
Social secunty costs 885 855
Partnership Bonus 187 4 146 9
Employers’ national insurance on Partnershup Bonus 234 183
Pension costs (note 25) 1380 124 0
Long leave cost 54 49
Total before partner discounts 1,6050 14759
Partner discounts (deducted from revenue) 574 501
16624 15260
Included above are the following amounis in respect of key
management compensation
Salanes and short-term benefits 135 124
Post-employment benefits* 46 49

* Includes pension supplements in heu of future pension accrual

Key management include directors of group companies, members of the group’s
management boards and officers of the group Key management compensation includes
salanies, national surance costs, pension costs and the cost of other employment benefits

such as company cars, private medical insurance and termination payments where

applicable

Key management participate in the group’s long leave scheme, which 15 open to all

employces and provides up to six menths’ paid leave after 25 years™ service There 1s no
proporueonal enutlement for shorter pertods of service It 1s not pracucal to allocate the cost
of accruing enutlement to this benefit to mdividuals, and so no allowance has been made

for this benefit in the amounts disclosed
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10 Employees {continued}

Dunng the year the average number of employees of the company was as follows

Company 2013 2012
John Lewis 29,300 28,200
Other 1,600 2,100
30,900 30,300
Employment and related costs were as follows
2013 2012
Company £m £m
Staff costs
Wages and salanes 5203 500 8
Social security costs 441 440
Partnership Bonus 847 661
Employers natienal insurance on Partnershup Bonus 166 82
Pension costs 685 58 9
Long leave cost 26 23
Total before partner discounts 7308 6813
Partner discounts 315 280
762 3 709 3
Included above are the following amounts in respect of key management
compensation
Salaries and short term benefits 90 83
Post-employment benefits* 31 34

* Includes pension supplements in Lheu of future pension accrual
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11 Intangible assets

Computer scftware

Internally Waork in

Purchased developed progress Total
Consolidated £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 29 January 2011 44 3 149 2 452 2387
Additions - - 88 4 88 4
Transfers 218 369 (58 7) -
Disposals 6 5) (177 {2 5) (26 7)
At 28 January 2012 586 168 4 72 4 3004
Additions - - 961 961
Transfers 237 300 (63 7) -
Disposals {5 3) 27 {4 8) (12 8)
At 26 January 2013 78 0 1957 1100 3837
Accumulated amortisation
At 29 January 2011 319 954 - 127 3
Charge for the year 85 238 - 323
Disposals (6 5} (17 0) - (23 5)
At 28 January 2012 339 102 2 - 1361
Charge for the year 80 339 - 419
Disposals (C 8) (7 2) - 80
At 26 January 2013 411 1289 - 1700
Net book value at 28 January 2012 257 66 2 72 4 164 3
Net book value at 26 January 2013 369 668 1100 2137

For the year to 26 January 2013 computer systems valued at £53 7m (2012 £58 7m) were
brought mto use This covered a range of selling, support, supply chain, administration
and informauon technology infrastructure apphicauons, with asset lives ranging from
three to ten years

Amorusauon of intangible assets 1s charged within operaung eapenses
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11 Intangible assets (continued)

Computer software
Internally Work in

Purchased developed progress Total
Company £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 29 January 2011 246 148 9 433 2168
Additions - - 667 667
Transfers 113 369 {48 2) -
Disposals 27 177 (25 (229
At 28 January 2012 332 168 1 593 2606
Additions - - 64 8 64 8
Transfers 121 105 (22 6) -
Disposals (4 9} (75 4) (21 3) (101 &)
At 26 January 2013 40 4 103 2 802 2238
Accumulated amortisation
At 29 January 2011 194 952 - 114 6
Charge for the year 43 237 - 280
Disposals 27 (17 0) - (197
At 28 January 2012 210 101 9 - 1229
Charge for the year 27 198 - 225
Disposals {0 5) {49 8) - (50 3)
At 26 January 2013 232 719 - 951
Net book value at 28 January 2012 122 66 2 593 1377
Net book value at 26 January 2013 172 313 802 128 7

For the year to 26 January 2013 computer systems totalling £22 6m (2012 £48 2m) were
brought into use This covered a range of selling, support, supply chain, admmistration and
mformauon technology infrastructure applicauons, with asset hves ranging from three to ten

years

Amortisation of intangible assets 1s charged within operaung expenses

At 29 January 2012, John Lews plc disposed of intangible assets with a net book value of
£46 5m to one of us subsidiaries, Waitrose Limited
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Assets in

Land and  Fixtures and course of

buldings fithngs  construction Total
Consolidated £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 29 January 2011 3,351 0 1,5750 2309 5,196 9
Additions - 15 427 9 429 4
Transfers 3732 1940 (567 2} -
Disposals (21 5) (174 6) (27) (198 8)
At 28 January 2012 3,7427 1,5959 889 5,427 5
Additions 141 27 26490 2808
Transfers 1458 936 (239 4) -
Disposals (11 4) 64 4) {14) (77 2)
At 26 January 2013 38912 1,627 8 1121 56311
Accumulated depreciation
At 29 January 2011 582 2 992 1 - 1,574 3
Charges for the year 819 1591 - 2410
Disposals (12 5) (173 7) - (186 2)
At 28 January 2012 6516 9775 - 16291
Charges for the year 98 9 156 2 - 2551
Disposals (101} (639 - (74 0}
At 26 January 2013 740 4 1,069 8 - 1,810 2
Net book values at 28 January 2012 3,091 1 6184 889 3,798 4
Net book values at 26 January 2013 3,1508 558 0 1121 3.8209

Included above are land and bunldings assets held under finance leases with a net book value

of £30 9m (2012 £19 Om)
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12 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets in

Land and  Fixtures and course of

buildings fitings  construction Total
Company £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 29 January 2011 642 7 7925 24 8 1,460 0
Additions - 11 1467 147 8
Transfers 603 857 (146 0) -
Disposals {23 6} {123 8) (2 7) {150 1)
At 28 January 2012 679 4 7555 228 1,457 7
Addrtions 01 10 1027 103 8
Transfers 44 6 450 {89 6) -
Disposals (0 6) (46 7) (18) (48 9)
At 26 January 2013 7235 754 8 343 1,512 6
Accumulated depreciation
At 29 January 2011 1140 495 ¢ - 609 0
Charges for the year 179 798 - 977
Disposals (6 0) (122 9) - (128 9)
At 28 January 2012 1259 4519 - 5778
Charges for the year 230 800 - 1030
Disposals (02) (45 Q) - (45 2)
At 26 January 2013 148 7 486 9 - 6356
Net book values at 28 January 2012 553 5 3036 228 879 ¢
Net book values at 26 January 2013 574 8 267 9 343 877 0

Included above are land and bulldings assets held under finance leases with a net book value
of £12 8m (2012 £13 Om)
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continued

13 Investments

Shares in Leans to
group group
companies companies Total
Company £Em £m £m
At 28 Janvary 2012 416 9251 966 7
Movements 01 (112 5) (112 4)
At 26 January 2013 417 8126 8543
A list of subsidiary undertakings 1s provided 1n note 33
The movements i shares in group companics relate to an increase in the company’s
mvestment 1 John Lewis Delivery Limited
14 lnventones
2013 2012
Consolidated £m Em
Raw matenals 31 36
Work 1n progress 09 08
Ftrushed goods and goods for resale 5100 4608
514 0 4652
Company
Raw materials 02 03
Fimished goods and goods for resale 2937 2632
2939 2635

The cost of inventory recognised as an expense by the group n the year was

£5,640 1m (2012 £5,166 5m) Provisions agamst inventones of £12 7m were charged

{2012 £3 2m charged) i operaung expenses
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15 Trade and other receivables

2013 2012

Consolidated £m £m
Current

Trade recevables 49 5 771

Other recervables 46 2 377

Prepayments and accrued mcome 96 2 98 4

191 9 2132

Non-current

Gther receivables 126 95
Prepayments and accrued incaome 43 2 418
558 513
Company
Current
Trade receivables 96 113
Other recewvables 27 2 1986
Prepayments and accrued income 49 5 536
863 845

Non-current
Prepayments and accrued income 46 4 410

Trade receivables are non interest bearing and generally on credit terms of less than
90 days Concentrauons of credit risk are considered to be very hmited The carrying
amournt of trade and other recevables appreximates to fair value and 1s denomnated
in sterling

As of 26 January 2013, group trade recervables of £2 3m (2012 £1 2m) were impaired and
fully provided for Movements in the provision for impairment of recervables were as follows

2013 2012
Consolidated £m £m
At start of year {12} (10
Charged to income statement (14) (05)
Utilised - 01
Released 03 02
At end of year (2 3) (12)
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

As of 26 January 2019, company trade and other rceewvables of £1 8m (2012 £0 7m) were
mpaired and fully provided for Movements in the provision for impairment of recervables
were as follows

2013 2012
Company £m £m
At start of year 07 (0 5)
Charged o income statement (11) (0 3)
Utihsed - 01
Released to income statement - -
At end of year (18) {07)

The creation and release of the provision for impaiwred receivables have been included n
operating expenscs 1n the income statement

As of 26 January 2013, group trade and other receiwvables of £21 Om (2012 £20 4m) were
past due but not impaired The ageing analysis of the past due amounts 1s as follows

2013 2012
Consolidated £m £m
Up to 3 months past due 181 180
3 to 12 months past due 20 18
Over 12 months past due 09 06
210 204

As of 26 January 2013, company trade and other recewvables of £3 6m (2012 £11 9m) were
past due but not impaired The ageing analysis of past due amounts 1s as follows

2013 2012

Company £m £m
Up to 3 months past due 74 113
3 to 12 months past due 13 04
Over 12 months past due 09 02
96 119
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16 Cash and cash equivalents

2013 2012
Consclhidated £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 1200 836
Short-term investments 414 4 467 2

534 4 550 8

Company
Cash at bank and 1n hand 45 6 245
Short-term investments 3793 4350

4249 459 5

For the year ended 26 January 2013, the effecuve interest rate on short-term investments
was 0 5% (2012 0 6%) and these deposits had an average matunty of 1 day (2012 2 days)

At 26 January 2013, £34 4m (2012 £32 1m) of the Group’s cash balance and £0 1m

(2012 £0 Im) of the Group’s accrued interest balance was pledged as collateral This s
part of the Partnership’s insurance arrangements and the release of these funds 1s subject
to approval from the third parties

In the consolidated and company statement of cash flows, net cash and cash equuvalents are
shown after deducung bank overdrafts, as follows

2013 2012
Consolrdated Em £m
Cash and cash equivalents, as above 534 4 550 8
Less bank overdrafts (56 3) 60 1)
Net cash and cash equivalents 478 1 4907
Company
Cash and cash equivalents, as above 424 9 4595
Less bank overdrafts (54 7) (59 0)
Net cash and cash equivalents 3702 4005
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17 Analysis of financial assets

The currency and interest rate exposures of the group’s and company’s financial assets are as
set out below Shortterm recevables and mvestments in subsidiary companies are excluded

from this analysis, on the basis that they are all non-nterest bearing and denominated m

sterling
Interest rate and currency analysis Floating  Non interest
Effective rate beanng Totat
Consolidated nterest rate £m £m £m
Sterling 0 5% 5200 14 3 5343
Other 0 0% 01 - 01
At 26 January 2013 5201 143 5344
Sterling 0 6% 537 0 135 550 5
Other 0 0% 03 - 03
At 28 January 2012 537 3 135 550 8
Interest rate and currency analysis Effective Fleating  Non interest
interest rate rate beanng Total
Company % £m £m £m
Sterling 0 5% 421 6 32 424 8
Other 0 0% 01 - 01
At 26 January 2013 4217 32 424 9
Sterling 0 6% 4559 33 4592
Other 0 0% 03 - 03
At 28 January 2012 456 2 33 4595

Floating rate assets are bank balances and short-term deposits at interest rates inked 10
LIBOR Non-mnterest bearing balances include cash fleats, primanly held n the stores
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18 Borrowings and overdrafts

2013 2012
Consolidated £m Em
Current
Bank overdraft 56 3 601
Loans - 1000
6%% Bonds, 2012 - 142 0
10%% Bonds, 2014 1000 -
156 3 3021
Non-current
10%% Bonds, 2014 - 100 0
Partnership Bond, 2016* 561 556
8%% Bonds, 2019 2750 2750
6%4% Bonds, 2025 3000 3000
Unamortised bond transaction costs (57 6 2)
5% First Cumulative Preference Stock 15 15
7% Cumulative Preference Stock 08 08
627 7 7267
Company
Current
Bank overdraft 547 590
Loans - 1000
6%% Bonds, 2012 - 1420
10%% Bonds, 2014 1000 -
154 7 3010
Non-current
10%% Bonds, 2014 - 1000
Partnership Bond, 2016* 561 556
8%% Bonds, 2019 2750 2750
6%4% Bonds, 2025 3000 3000
Unameortised bond transaction costs 57 (6 2)
5% First Cumulative Preference Stock 15 15
7% Cumulative Preference Stock 08 08
0277 7267

* The Partnership Bond 15 a five vear investment product offering a fixed annual retarn of 4 5% 1n cash and a further

2% i John Lews Partnership gift vouchers

All borrowings are unsecured, denonmunated in sterling, and are repayable on the dates

shown, at par

If the preference dividends are in arrears or in the event of winding up, the 5% First
Cumulauve Preference Stock and the 7% Cumulative Preference Stock have one vote per
share Otherwse, the holders of preference stock have one vote for every ten shares,
whereas the holders of erdinary shares have one vote for every ordinary share held The

amounts recewvable in a winding up would be hmited to the amounts paid up, the 5% First

Cumulatve Preference Stock taking prnionty over the 7% Cumulauve Preference Stock
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19 Trade and other payables

2013 2012
Consolidated £m £m
Current
Trade payables 698 1 5301
Amounts owed to parent undertaking 8% 2 742
Other payables 1151 1012
Other taxation and social secunty 1740 1431
Accruals 1515 1851
Deferred income 334 250
Partnership Bonus 1900 1486
1,451 3 1,207 3
Non-current
Accruals - 09
Other payables 07 08
Deferred income 1186 841
1163 858
Company
Current
Trade payables 3055 2020
Amounts owed to parent undertaking 89 2 74 2
Amounts owed to group companies 2209 2093
Other payables 922 801
Other taxation and social security 1361 1250
Accruals 94 6 134 2
Deferred income 278 235
Partnership Bonus 188 0 1454
1,154 3 9937
Non-current
Accruals - 09
Deferred income 104 2 750
104 2 759

The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to fair value
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20 Finance lease liabilities

2013 2012
Consolidated £m Em
The mimmum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows
Not later than one year 46 18
Later than one year but not more than five 16 0 68
More than five years 46 6 46 2
67 2 54 8
Future finance charge on finance leases (28 3) (27 8)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 389 270
Of which
Current 30 06
Non-current 359 264
Company
The minimum lease payments under finance leases fail due as follows
Not later than one year 05 05
Later than one year but not more than five 20 20
More than five years 24 4 249
269 274
Future finance charge on finance leases {12 4} (12 7}
Present value of finance lease habilities 145 147
Of which
Current 02 02
Non-current 143 145

The group’s finance lease habilities relate to buildings and plant, property and equipment
that have been classified as finance leases 1n accordance with IAS 17 Leases
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21 Provisions

Service
Long guarantee Customer Insurance
leave costs refunds claims GOther Total
Consolidated £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 28 January 2012 929 49 4 221 205 213 2062
Charged to income statement 25 8 264 45 4 107 232 1315
Released to income statement - 61) - - (31) (92)
Utilised (6 5) (17 0} (41 2) (97) {7 9) (82 3)
At 26 January 2013 1122 527 263 215 335 246 2
Of which
Current 337 192 263 48 260 1100
Non-current 785 335 - 167 75 1362
Service
Long puarantee Customer
leave costs refunds Other Total
Company £m £m £m £m Em
At 28 January 2012 929 49 4 221 159 180 3
Charged to income statement 258 264 454 160 1136
Released to income statement - 1) - 30 91)
Utihsed (6 5) (17 0) (41 2) (5 0} (69 7)
At 26 January 2013 112 2 527 263 239 2151
Of which
Current 337 192 263 177 96 9
Non-current 785 335 - 62 1182

The Partnership has a long leave scheme, open to all employees, that provides up to six
months’ paid leave after 25 years’ service There 1s no proporuonal enutllement for shorter
penods of service The provision for the habilities under the scheme 1s assessed on an
actuanial basis, reflecung employees’ expected service profiles, and using economic
assumptions consistent with those uscd for the group’s retirement benefit obhgations (note
25) with the excepuon of the discount rate, where a rate appropriate 1o the shorter duration
of the long leaye hability 15 used, so as to accrue the cost over employees’ service periods

Prowvisions for service guarantee costs reflect the group’s expected hability for future repair
costs based on expected failure rates and unit reparir costs for the classes of goods sold

Provision for customer refunds reflects the group’s expected Lability for returns of goods
sold based on expenence of rates of return

Prowvisions for insurance claims are n respect of the group’s employer’s, public and
vehicle third party hability insurances and extended warranty products Liabiliues have
been assessed on an actuarial basis

Other prowvisicns mnclide reorgamsation costs, accrued holiday pay and property related
COSLs

The exact urmng of utihsation of these provisions will vary according to the mdmidual
circumstances However, the Partnership’s best esumate of uulisatton 1s provided above
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22 Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s calculated n full on temporary differences under the hability method

using a tax rate of 23% (2012 25%)

The movement on the deferred tax account i1s shown below

2013 2012
Consolidated £m £m
QOpeming hability 321 947
Credited to Income statement (28 8) (14 2)
Credited to other comprehensive expense (28 9) (48 4)
Closing {asset)/hability (25 6) 321
2013 2012
Company £m £m
Opening asset {129 1} (77 8
Credited to income statement {16 8) 20
Credited to other comprehensive expense (32 0) (49 3)
Closing asset (177 9) (129 1)

The movements in deferred tax assets and habilities during the year (prior to the

offsetung of balances withun the same junsdicuon, as permtted by IAS 12) are shown

below

Deferred tax assets and hab:lities are only offset where there 1s a legally enforceable right
of offset and there 15 an 1ntention 1o settle the balances net

Accelerated Revaluation
tax of land and Rollover

depreciation buildings gains Other Total
Deferred tax habilities - consolidated £m £m £m £m £m
At 29 January 2011 1790 49 218 18 207 5
(Credited)/charged to income statement (130) 08 07 18 97N
At 28 January 2012 166 0 57 225 36 1978
Credited to iIncome statement (18 8) (10) {2 6) (14) (23 8)
At 26 January 2013 147 2 47 199 22 1740
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22 Deferred tax (continued)

Capital
Egains tax on Pensions

land and and Capital

buildings provisions losses Total
Deferred tax assets — consolidated £m £m £m £m
At 29 January 2011 {2 3) (110 5) - (112 8)
Credited to income statement {4 2) (0 3} - (4 5)
Credited to other comprehensive expense - (48 4) - (48 4)
At 28 lanuary 2012 {6 5) {159 2} - (165 7)
Credited to income statement {0 8) (4 2) - (50)
Credited to other comprehensive expense - (28 9) - {28 9)
At 26 January 2013 (7 3) {152 3) - (199 6)

Accelerated Revaluation
tax of land and Rollover
depreciation buildings gains Other Total
Deferred tax habilities — company £m £m £m £m £m
At 29 January 2011 765 01 82 15 863
{Credited)/charged to income statement (55) - 03 03 49
At 28 January 2012 710 01 85 18 814
{Credited)/charged to \ncome statement (10 6) - (1 2) {0 5) (12 3)
At 26 lanuary 2013 604 01 73 13 691
Caprtal
gains tax on Pensions
land and and
buildings provisions Total

Deferred tax assets — company £m £m Em
At 29 January 2011 (122) (1519 (164 1)
Charged to income statement - 29 29
Credited to other comprehensive expense - (49 3) {49 3)
At 28 January 2012 (122) (1983) (2105}
Charged to income statement 08 53 61
Credited to other comprehensive expense - (42 6) {42 6)
At 26 January 2013 (114) (2356) (2470}

Deferred tax asscts are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent that the
realisauon of the related tax benefit through future profits 1s probable There were no
unrecogmised deferred tax assets in respect of losses, for the group or the company, for
the year ended 26 January 2013 (2012 nil)
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22 Deferred tax (continued)

The deferred tax balance associated with the pension deficit has been adjusted to reflect the
current tax benefit obtained m the finanaal year ended 30 January 2010 following the
contnibution of the limited partnership interest in JLP Scottish Limited Parmership to the
pension scheme (see note 25)

All of the deferred 1ax assets for the group were available for offset agamst deferred tax
habilities and hence the net deferred tax asset at 26 January 2013 was £25 6m (2012
tiabihty of £32 1m) The net deferred tax asset for the group 1s recoverable after more
than one year

All of the deferred tax labilities for the company were available for offset against deferred
1ax assets and hence the net deferred tax asset at 26 January 2013 was £177 9m (2012
asset of £129 Im) The net deferred tax asset for the company 1s recoverable after more
than one year

23 Management of financial nsks

The principal financial risks to which the group s exposed are hquidity nsk, interest rate
nisk, foreign currency risk, credit nisk, capital nisk and energy nsk These nsks are
managed as follows

Liquudity sk

Liquidity requirements are managed m hine with short and long-term cash flow forecasts
and reviewed against the group’s debt portfolio and marrity profile During the year, the
group refinanced £310m kilateral borrowmg facihues with a £325m five year syndicated
revolving borrowing facility At the year end the group had undrawn commutted revolving
borrowings facthues of £325m (2012 £310m) In addiuon to these facihues, the group has
listed bonds totalling £675m, of which £100m mature in 2014, £275m 1n 2019 and £300m
in 2025, and the Partnership bond 1ssued in April 2011 and maturing 1 2016, which
raised gross proceeds of £58m The bonds are not subject to repricing, and their interest
rates and matunty profiles are set out i note 26

The group’s bank borrowmg facihty contains one financial covenant, based on fixed
charge cover The mimimum covenant that apples is that consolidated EBITDAR shall not
be less than 2 5 times rent adjusted total net interest costs Throughout the year the
Partnership maintaimed comfortable headroom against this covenant and 15 expected to
do so into the foreseeable future

During the year, a term loan of £100m was repaid at maturity in December 2012 and
£142m of bonds were repaid i january 2012

The group’s total commitied sources of funds at the date of signing these accounts are
£1,058m
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23 Management of financial nisks {continued)

The following analysis shows the contractual undiscounted cash flows payable under
financial habilites and denvatuve finanaal habiliues at the balance sheet date

Due within  Due between  Due 2 years
lyear 1 and 2 years  and beyond
Consolidated £m £m £m

Non-derivative financial habilittes

Borrowings and overdrafts (156 3) - (635 1)
Interest payments on borrowings* {54 5) (44 O) (304 1)
Finance lease habihties (4 8) (46) (58 0)
Trade and other payables (1,243 9) (07} -

Derivative financial hiabilities

Derivative contracts — receipts 1630 - -

Derivative contracts — payments (166 7) - -
At 26 January 2013 {1,463 O} (49 3) (997 2)
Non-denvative financial llabthties

Borrowings and overdrafts (302 1) (100 O) (635 1)

Interest payments on borrowings* (64 2) (54 5) (358 6)

Finance lease habilities (18 (18) {51 2)

Trade and other payables (1,039 2) 17) -

Derivative financial habilities

Dervative contracts — receipts 152 9 - -
Derwvative contracts — payments (153 2} - -
At 28 January 2012 1,407 6 (158 0) (1,044 9)

* Excludes annual interest of £0 lm on cumulatine preference stock which have no fixed redempuon date
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23 Management of financial nsks (continued)

Due within  Due between  Due 2 years
1year 1 and 2years and beyond

Company £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial habilities

Borrowings and qverdrafts (154 7} - {635 1)

Interest payments on borrowings* {54 5} (44 OQ) (304 1)

Finance lease habihties {0 5} (05 (25 9)

Trade and other payables {990 4} - -
Derwvative financial liabihties

Dervative contracts - receipts 163 0 - -

Dervative contracts — payments (166 7) - -
At 26 January 2013 {1,203 8) (44 5) (965 1)
Non-denvative financial habilities

Borrowings and overdrafts (301 O) (100 0) (6351)

Interest payments on borrowings* (64 2) (54 5) (358 6)

Finance lease habilities {0 5) 05 (26 4)

Trade and other payables (845 2) (09 -
Denvative financial habilities

Dervative contracts — receipts 152 9 - -

Derivative contracts — payments (153 2) - -
At 28 January 2012 {1,211 2) (1559) (1,0201)

* Excludes annual interest of £0 Im on cumulative preference stock which has no fixed redemption date

Interest on borrowings 1s calculated based on the borrowing position at the financial year
end without taking account of future 1ssues

For the purposes of this note, the foreign currency clement of forward foreign currency
contracts 1s translated at spot rates prevarthing at the year end

Interest rate nisk

In order to manage the risk of interest rate fluctuatons the group targets a rauo of fixed
and floating rate debt in hine with the Partnership Board approved treasury policy An
analysis of the group’s financial liabihties 1s detailed 1 note 26 Exposures to interest rate
fluctuations are managed using mterest rate derivauves As authorised by the Partnership
Board, the rauo of fixed to floaung rate borrowing has remained outside treasury pohicy
during the vear, as 1t was decided not to enter into new interest rate swaps given the
historically low bond yield levels

Foreign currency risk

The group uses dernvative financial instruments to manage exposures to movements m
exchange rates ansing from transactions with foreign suppliers Foreign currency
exposures are hedged primarily using forward foreign exchange contracts covering up to
100% of forecast exposures on a rolling basis Forward foreign exchange contracts used to
hedge forecast currency requirements are destgnated as cash flow hedges wath fair value
movements recogmised n equuity Denwvauve financial instruments that were designated as
cash flow hedges during the year were fully effective At the balance sheet date, forward
currency contracts of £163 Om (2012 £152 9m) had been entered into 10 hedge purchases
in foreign currencies which will mature over the next 18 months
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23 Management of financial nisks {continued)

Credit risk

The group has no significant exposure to customer credit risk due to transactions being
principally of a high volume, low valuc and short maturity Cash deposits and other
financial mstruments give nise to credit risk on the amounts due from counterpartics
These risks are managed by restricung such transacuions to counterparties with a credit
raung not less than a Standard & Poor’s equivalent ‘A’ raung and designatng appropriate
limits to each counterparty

The group and company consider their masimum exposure to credit nisk 1s as follows

2013 2012
Consolidated £m £m
Trade and other receivables 108 2 124 3
Cash and cash eguivalents 534 4 550 8
Derivative financial instruments 42 27

646 8 6778

2013 2012
Company £m £m
Trade and other receivables 368 309
Cash and cash equivalents 424 9 459 5
Denvative financial instruments 42 27

4659 4931

Capatal nisk

The group’s objecuves when managing capital (defined as net debt plus equity) are 1o
safeguard 1ts ability to continue as a going concern, provide retrns for 1ts Partners and to
maintain a prudent level of debt funding The group 1s a long-term business, held in trust
for the benefit of 1ts Partners The co-ownership model means that 1t 1s not able to raise
cquity externally

The group manages capital to ensure an appropnate balance between vesting m Partner,
customer and profit The policy 15 to mamntain a capital structure consistent with an
investment grade credit raung Although the group does not have an external credit raung,
i routinely monitors 1ts capital and hquidity requirements using capital rauos commonly
used by rating agencies to assess risk, whilst mamntaining an appropnate level of debt
headroom and a smooth debt matunty profile to ensure conunuty of funding The group
borrows centrally 1o meet the requurements of its dwisions using a mix of funding mcluding
capital market 1ssues and bank facthiues The group further diversified 1ts funding sources
through the 1ssue of a Partership bond to 1ts Partners and customers in Apnil 2011 Other
forms of borrowing melude SIP shares 1ssued by John Lewts Partnership plc as part of the
BonusSave scheme and a small amount of cumulauve preference stock
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23 Management of financial nsks (continued)

Energy risk

The group operates risk management processes for the group’s energy costs associated with
its acuvities The group’s energy policy 1s reviewed by an energy commutiee which meets
regularly to review pricing exposure to electricity and gas consumpuon and determines
strategy for forward purchasing and hedging of energy costs using flexible purchase
contracts

Sensitivity analysis

The following analysis illustrates the sensitivity of the group’s financial instruments to
changes in market vaniables, namely UK interest rates and the US dollar, euro and Hong
Kong dollar to sterling exchange rates The level of sensiuvities chosen, bemng 1%
movement 1 Sterling interest rates and a 10% movement in Sterling when compared to
the US dollar, euro and Hong Kong dollar, reflects the Partnership’s view of reasonable
possible changes to these vanables which existed at the year end

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market vanables on the carrying value
of pension and other postreurement obligauons and provisions

The analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of
fixed to floaung rate borrowings and the proporton of financial mstruments in foreign
currencies are constant throughout the year, based on posittons as at the year end

The following assumpuions have been made n calculaung the sensiuvity analysis

* the sensiuwvity of mnterest costs to movements 1 interest rates 1s calculated using
floating rate debt and mvestment balances prevailing at the year end,

* changes in the carrying value of derivauve financial instruments not in hedging
relatonships are assumed only to affect the income statement, and

* all derwative financial instruments designated as hedges are assumed to be fully

effecuve
2013 2012
Income Income
statement Equity statement Equity |
+/- £m +-£m +H-£m  +/-£m i
UK interest rates +/~ 1% (2012 +/- 2%) 45 - 43 - |
US dollar exchange rate +/~ 10% (2012 +/~ 10%} 04 93 06 65
Euro exchange rate +/~ 10% (2012 +/- 10%) 05 49 05 60
Hong Kong dollar exchange rate +/~ 10% (2012 +/~ 10%} - 01 - 03
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continued

24 Derivative financial instruments

All finanaial assets and habilites are held at amortsed cost with the exception of
dervative financial instruments which are held at fair value

Details of the group’s dervatuve financial instruments, used o manage the financial nisks
as idenufied 1in note 23, are as follows

Fair value of denivative 2013 2013 2012 2012
financial instruments Assets Liabilities Assets Liabitities
Consolidated and Company £m £m £m £m
Currency denvatives - cash flow hedge 42 06 27 25

42 06 27 25

The fair value of the dervative financial mstruments held by the group are classified as
level 2 under the IFRS 7 fair value hierarchy as all significant inputs to the valuanon
model used are based on observable market data

The fair values of the group’s listed bonds and preference stock, which have been
determined by reference to market price quotauons, are shown below For cash and other
financial habilities, book values approximate to fair value

2013 2012
Consolidated and Company £m £m
Bonds 826 8 914 3
Preference stock 19 20

25 Retirement benefit obligations

The principal pension scheme operated by the group 1s a defined benefit scheme,
providing benefits based on final pensionable pay The assets of this scheme are held
1n a separate, trustee admmuistered fund

The fund was last valued by an independent professionally quahfied actuary as at

31 March 2010 using the projected unit method, which resulted m a funding surplus of
£83m The market value of the assets of the fund as at 31 March 2010 was £2,341m The
acruarial valuauon of these assets showed that they were sufficient to cover 104% of the
benefits which had accrued 10 members

The actuaries recommended a normal future annual contribution rate of 12 2% of gross
taxable pay of members The next triennial actuanal valuation of the fund will take place
as at 31 March 2013

The senior pension scheme provided additional benefits to certain members of senior
management The actuaries recommended an annual contribution rate of £1 5m The
senior pension scheme was merged mto the main scheme on 31 March 2013

In January 2013, the group made a one-off contribuuon of £125m mwo the pension
scheme The ongoing contributions expected to be paid to the pension schemes during
the year to 25 January 2014 amount to £115m
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25 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Pension commitments have been calculated based on the most recent actuanal valuations,
as at 31 March 2010, which have been updated by the actuaries to reflect the assets and
habilities of the schemes as at 26 January 2013

Scheme assets are stated at market values at 26 January 2013 The following financal
assumptions have been used

2013 2012
Future retail pnice inflation 320% 2 B0%
Future consumer price inflation 2 30% 2 00%
Discount rate 4 60% 4 95%
Expected return on assets 7 50% 7 60%
Increases in earnings 370% 3 30%
Increases mn pensions — in payment 3 00% 2 60%
Increases in pensions — deferred 2 30% 2 00%

The expected return on assets 1s a weighted average of the mdividual asset categories

and their expected rates of return, which are determined by consideration of historical
experience and current market factors Increases in earnings are projected at 0 5% above
retald price inflation, with increases in pensions in payment bemg 0 2% below retail price
inflanon, reflecung the impact of a cap on the tevel of pension increases, and increases
deferred pensions being 1n line with consumer price inflation

The financial assumpuon which has the most significant effect on the valuauon of scheme
liabiliies and the current service cost 1s the real discount rate, 1 & the discount rate less
the rate of future retail price inflaton A movement in the real discount rate of ¢ 10%
would have the effect of increasing or decreasing the IAS 19 defined benefit obligation by
circa £65m, and would increase or decrease the current service cost by circa £3 5m

The postreurement mortality assumpuons used in valuing the pensions habihties were based
on the “81 Light” series standard tables for all retirements, together with medum cohort
improvement factors, and reflecung anticipated future tmprovements in mortality rates

The average life expectancies assumed were as follows

2013 2012
Men Women Men Women
Average hfe expectancy (in years) for a 60-year-old 262 285 262 284
Average life expectancy {(in years) at age 60,

for a 40-year-old 27 6 299 275 298

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet £m £m £m £m £m
Defined benefit obligation for

funded arrangements {3,781 0) (3,164 0) (2,8690) (2,8240) (2,3340}
Defined benefit obligation for

unfunded arrangements (150) (11 0) (11 0} 290 (18 0)

Total defined beneft obligation (3,796 0) (3,1750} (2,880 (2,8530) (2,352Q)

Total value of assets 29739 2,536 9 2,466 0 19484 1,622 0

Defined benefit hability at end of year (822 1) (638 1) (414 0) {904 6} (730 0}
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25 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Year ended Year ended

26 January 28 January

2013 2012

Amounts recognised in the income statement £€m £m
Current service cost 1290 117 4
Contnbution expense* 64 49
Administrative expenses 26 17
Operating expenses 1380 1240
Interest cost on habilities 154 8 1602
Expected return on assets {193 0} {190 5)
Finance income (38 2} (303
Total pension charge 99 8 937

* Includes group contnbutions to the defined conmbution sche me and conwibunons w a separate plan managed by
4 third party, together with pension supplements in respect of certain Partners in heu of future pension accerual

Year ended Year ended

26 January 28 January

2013 2012

Amounts recogmsed in equity £m £m
Actuarial (gains)/losses on assets (108 3) 1451
Actuaral losses on defined benefit obligation 434 & 1097
Total losses recognised in equity 3263 2548
Cumulative loss recognised in equity 8119 4856
2013 2012

Reconcihation of net defined benefit hability £m £m
Net defined benefit hability at beginning of year (638 1) (414 Q)
Pension expense (90 8) 87 1)
Contributions 2331 117 8
Total losses recogmised in equity (326 3) (254 8)
Net defined benefit liability at end of year (822 1) {638 1)
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25 Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

2013 2012

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation £m £m
Defined benefit obligation at the beginmng of year 3,175 0 28800
Current service cost 1290 117 4
Interest on pension habilities 154 8 160 2
Actuanal losses 434 6 1097
Benefits paid (97 4) {92 3)
Defined benefit obhgation at the end of year 3,796 0 3,1750
2013 2012

Reconcihation of value of assets £m £m
Value of assets at the beginning of year 25369 2,466 0
Expected return on assets 133 0 1905
Actuanal gains/{losses) 108 3 (145 1)
Benefits paid (97 4) (92 3)
Contributions 2331 1178
Value of assets at the end of year 29739 2,5369
2013 2013 2012 2012

Analysis of assets % £m % £m
Equities 73 2,168 3 77 19586
Bonds 12 3630 12 3098
Properties 6 181 6 8 1910
Other 9 2610 3 775
2,973 9 2,536 9

2013 2012

Actual return on assets £m £m
Expected return on assets 193 0 1305
Actuanal gains/{losses) 108 3 (145 1)
Actual return on assets 3013 45 4
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25 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
History of experience of gains and losses £m £m £m £m £m
Gans/(losses) on assets 108 3 {145 1) 1792 164 7 (514 5)
% of assets at the end of the year 4% 6% 7% 8% 32%
Experience gains/(losses) on defined
benefit obligation 303 (33 4) 106 5 280 17 4
% of defined benefit obligation at the
end of the year 1% 1% 4% 1% 1%

Contnbutions will be as follows unul the next actuarial valuation, due as at 31 March 2013

The John Lewis Partnership Trust for Pensions - 12 2% of scheme members’ gross taxable pay
(excluding Partnership Bonus)

For the John Lews Partnershup Sentor Pension Scheme - £1 5m, or such other amount as
certified by the scheme actuary based upon an analysis of the membership daia at the start of the
scheme year

On 30 January 2010 the group entered nto an arrangement with the Pension Scheme Trustices
to address an element of the scheme deficit that exasted at that ume

The group estabhished two partnerships, JLP Scotush Limited Partnership and JLP Scotush
Partnership, which are both consohdated within these group financial statements

Together with another group company, JLP Scottish Limited Partershup provided sufficient
capital to JLP Scotush Partmership 10 enable 1t to procure property assets with a market value of
£150 9m from other group compames The group retains control over these properues,
mcluding the flexibility to substitute alternative properues The Propernes held i JLP Scotuish
Parmership have been leased back to John Lews plc and Wanrose Limited In September 2011,
the group withdrew properties with a market value of £70 Om and subsututed these with other
properties with a market value of £72 8m

As a partner m JLP Scotush Limited Partnership, the penston scheme 1s enuted to an annual
share of the profits of the JLP Scotush Limited Partnership each year over 21 years At the end of
this penod, the partnership capital allocated to the pension scheme will be reassessed,
dependmg on the funding posiion of the pension scheme at that ume, with a potental value in
the range £0 5m to £99 5m At that pomt, the group may be requured to transfer this amount in
cash 1o the scheme

Under IAS 19, the investment held by the pension scheme i JLP Scotush Limited Parmership, a
consohidated enuty, does not represent a plan asset for the purpose of the group’s consolidated
financial statements Accordingly, the pension deficit position presented i these consolidated
accounts does not reflect the £108 Om (2012 £94 6m) mvestment in JLP Scotush Limited
Parmership held by the pension scheme The dismibunon of JLP Scotush Limited Partnershup
profits to the pension scheme 15 reflected as pension contributions n these consohdated
financial staterments on a cash basis

The mvestment does representa plan asset for the purpose of the company accounts The
reurement benefit obligauon for the company as at 26 January 2013 was £714 1m (2012
£543 5m)
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26 Analysis of financial habilities

The currency and mnterest rate exposure of the group’s and company’s financial habilities
15 as set out below Short term payables are excluded from this analysis on the basis that

they are all non-interest bearing

Interest rate and currency analysis Fixed Floating
rate rate Total
Consolidated £m £m £m
All sterling
At 26 January 2013 766 6 56 3 8229
At 28 January 2012 7537 3021 1,055 8
Matunty of financial habihities 2013 2013 2012 2012
Effective Effective
Consclidated interest rate £m  interest rate £m
Repayable within one year
Bank overdrafts and other borrowing 1 8% 56 3 18% 601
Property finance leases 7 6% 30 7 6% 06
Loans - - 15% 1000
Bonds 10 5% 1000 6 4% 1420
1593 3027
Repayable between one and two years
Property finance leases 7 6% 33 7 6% 06
Bonds - 10 5% 1000
33 1006
Repayable between two and five years
Property finance leases 7 6% 79 7 6% 21
Bonds 5 5% 561 5 5% 556
Unamortised bond transaction costs (0 4) (0 5)
636 57 2
Repayable in more than five years
Property finance leases 7 6% 247 7 6% 237
Bonds 7 2% 5750 72% 5750
Unamortised bond transaction costs (53) (57)
Preference stock 56% 23 5 6% 23
596 7 5953
8229 1,055 8
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26 Analysis of financial iabilities {continued)

Interest rate and currency analysis Fixed Floating
rate rate Total
Company £m £m £m
All sterling
At 26 January 2013 742 2 547 796 9
At 28 January 2012 741 4 3010 1,042 4
Matunty of financial habilities 2013 2013 2012 2012
Effective Effective
Company interest rate £m  Interest rate £m
Repayable within ¢ne year
Bank overdrafts 1 8% 547 18% 590
Property finance leases 7 6% 02 7 6% 02
Loans - - 1 5% 1000
Bonds 10 5% 100 0 6 4% 1420
154 9 3012
Repayable between one and two years
Property finance leases 7 6% 02 7 6% 02
Bonds - - 10 5% 1000
02 100 2
Repayable between two and five years
Property finance {eases 76% 06 7 6% 06
Bonds 55% 561 55% 55 6
Unamortised bond transaction costs {0 4) (0 5)
56 3 557
Repayable in more than five years
Property finance leases 7 6% 135 7 6% 137
Bonds 7 2% 5750 7 2% 5750
Unamortised bond transaction costs (5 3) (57}
Preference stock 56% 23 5 6% 23
5855 5853
796 9 1,042 4
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27 Share capital

2013 2012
Em £m
Authorised, 1ssued and fully paid
Equity
Ordinary shares
6,750,000 of £1 each 67 67
67 67
28 Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations
Year to Year to
26 January 28 January
2013 2012
Consolidated £m £m
Profit before tax 1980 188 1
Amortisation of intangible assets 419 323
Depreciation 2551 241 0
Net finance costs 409 377
Partnership Bonus 2108 1652
Loss on disposal of other plant and equipment and intangible assets 61 39
Increase In inventories (48 8) (43 2)
Decreasef(increase) in recevables 167 {12 6)
Increase in payables 2299 160 3
Increase/(decrease) in retirement benefit obligations 209 (04
Increase 1n provisions 196 17
Cash generated from operations 9911 7740
Year to Year to
26 lJanuary 28 January
2013 2012
Company £m £m
Profit before tax 240 799
Amortisation of intangible assets 225 280
Depreciation 1030 977
Net finance costs 396 369
Partnership Bonus 95 2 74 4
Exceptional gain on hquidation of subsidiaries - (78 4)
Loss on disposal of other plant and equipment and intangible assets 539 87
Increase in inventones (30 4) (18 0)
{increase)/decrease In receivables (7 2) 36
increase 1n payables 1151 820
tncrease 1n retirement benefit obhgations 277 63
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 144 (18)
Cash generated from operations 457 8 3193
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29 Analysis of net debt

Qther
28 January nan-cash 26 lanuary
2012 Cash flow movements 2013
Consolidated £m £m £m £m
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 550 8 (16 4) - 53414
Derivative financial instruments 27 - 15 42
5535 (16 4) 15 5386

Current liabilittes
Borrowings and overdrafts (302 1) 2458 {100 O) {156 3)
Finance leases (0 6) 35 (59 (30)
Derivative financial instruments (2 5) - 19 (06)

(305 2) 2493 (104 O) (159 9)

MNon-current habilities

Borrowings (732 9) - 995 {633 4)
Unamortised bond transaction costs 62 - (0 5) 57
Finance leases (26 &) - (9 B) {359)

{753 1} - 895 (663 6)
Total net debt (504 8} 2329 {(130) (284 9)

Reconcilbiation of net cash flow to net debt

Year to Year to

26 January 28 January

2013 2012

Consohdated £m £m
(Decrease)increase in cash in the year (12 6) 433
Cash outflow/(inflow) from decrease/{increase) in debt and lease financing 2455 54 0)
Movement in debt for the year 2329 (107)
Opening net debt {504 8) (493 0}
Non-cash movements 133 {11)
Closing net debt (284 9) (504 8)
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30 Commitments and contingent habilities

At 26 January 2013 contracts had been entered mnto for future capital expenditure
of £11 Im (2012 £24 Om) for the group, and £3 5m (2012 £18 9m) for the company

John Lewis ple conunues to provide lease guarantees in favour of the group’s former

associate company, Ocado Limied, of £6 8m (2012 £6 8m)

31 Operating lease commitments

2013 2012
Future aggregate mimimum lease Land and Land and
payments under non-cancellable buildings buildings
operating leases, payable £m £m
Consoldated
Within one year 138 4 117 0
Later than one year and less than five years 503 4 4410
After five vears 2,299 3 1,890 1t
Company
Within one year 479 394
Later than one year and less than five years 156 6 1458
After five years 1,0011 968 6
Future aggregate minimum lease 2013 2012
payments under non-cancellable Land and Land and
operating leases, payable after five builldings burdings
years comprise the following £m £m
Consohdated
Later than five years and less than ten years 5295 450 5
Later than ten years and less than twenty years 677 5 5715
Later than twenty years and less than forty years 3230 2507
Later than forty years and less than eighty years 296 6 2584
After eighty years 4727 3590
2,2993 1,8901
Company
Later than five years and less than ten years 154 0 1420
Later than ten years and less than twenty years 2246 2199
Later than twenty years and less than forty years 144 9 1366
Later than forty years and less than eighty years 1557 144 8
After eighty years 3219 3253
1,0011 968 6

To1al future sub-lease payments recevable relaung to the above operaung leases

amounted to £11 8m (2012 £13 6m) for the group, and £3 6m (2012 £3 1m) for the

company
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32 Related party transactions

During the year John Lews ple entered into transacuons with other group compames in
respect of the supply of goods for resale and associated services totalling £16 Om

(2012 £24 3m), purchase of goods for resale totalling £51 Om (2012 £45 2m), the use of
land and buldigs totalling £39 Om {2012 £41 6m), the supply of IT and related services
totalling £nil (2012 £44 5m}, the supply of admimistrative and other shared services
otalling £26 6m (2012 £25 3m) and the hire of vehicles totalling £15 6m (2012 £13 9m)

In addition, John Lews plc settled other transacuons on behall of group companies for
admmustrauve conventence, such as payroll and supplier settlement All such transactions
were charged at cost to the relevant group company Itis not practical to quanufy thesc
recharges

The group entered mto an arrangement with the Pension Scheme Trustee on 30 January
2010 to address an element of the scheme deficit that existed at that time Details of thas
arrangement and changes made in September 2011 are set out 1n note 25

In December 2011 the group sold a property to the maimn pension scheme for £10 6m and
entered 1nto an operatng lease n respect of the property These transactions were at
market values

The John Lewis Partnership Trust Limited 1s a related party and holds the Deferred
Ordinary Sharcs i the Partnership on behalf of the Partners The John Lewis Partnership
Trust Limited facitates the approval and payment of the Partnership Bonus The John
Lews Partnership Trust Limited faciluates the approval and payment of the Partnership
Bonus and BonusSave At the year end there was a balance of £9 8m (2012 £5 83m) owed
to John Lews plc by The John Lewis Partnership Trust Limited 1n respect of BonusSave

Key management compensauon has been disclosed in note 10

Loans payable to group companies are included n note 19
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33 Subsidiary and associated undertakings

Principal subsidiary undertakings as at 26 January 2013 were as follows

Herbert Parkinson Limited (Weaving and making up)

JLP Insurance Lirmited (Insurance, incorporated and operating in Guernsey)

JLP Scotush Linuted Partmershup (fnvestment holding undertaking)

JLP Scotush Partnership (Inuvestment holding undertaking)

John Lewis Car Finance Limited (Car finance)

John Lewis Delwvery Limated {International delrvery)

John Lewis Properues plc (Properly holding company)

Waitrose (Jersey) Limuted (Food retailing, incorporaled and operating in Jersey)
Waitrose (Guernsey} Limited (Food relathing, incorporated and operating in Guernsey)
Waitrose Limuted (Food retailing)

The whele of the ordinary share capital of the subsidiary undertakings of Jjohn Lews plc 1s
held withm the group The list excludes non-trading subsidiary undertakings which have
no materal effect on the accounts of the group Except as noted above, all of these
subsidiary undertakings operate wholly or mamly in the Uniuted Kingdoem and are
registered 1n England and Wales or Scotland, and the company undertakings are
mcorporated m England and Wales

John Lewis Partnershup plc 1s the company’s immediate and ulumate parent company
and prepares consohdated accounts which include the accounts of the company

Ulumate control rests with John Lewis Partnership Trust Limited, which holds the equity
of John Lewts Partnership plc in trust for the benefit of the employees Both of these
companies are regisiered 1n England and Wales

Copies of these accounts may be obtained from the Company Secretary,
John Lews Partnershap, 171 Victonia Street, London SWI1E 5NN

The group has taken advaniage of the exemption conferred by regulation 7 of the
Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008 and has therefore not appended the accounts of
JLP Scottish Partnership and JLP Scotush Limited Partnership to these accounts Separate
accounts for these partnerships are not required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities
Jor the annual report and accounts

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts in accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year
Under that law the directors have preparcd the group and parent company financial statements
mn accordance with International Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Unton Under company law the directors must not approve the financaal statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and
the company and of the profit or loss of the group for that period In preparing these finanaal
statements, the directors are required to

— select suntable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
— make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

— state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the finanaal statements

The directors are responsible for keeping adequatc accounung records that are sufficient to
show and explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any nme
the financial position of the company and the group and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 and, as regards the group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevenuon and
detection of fraud and other irregulantics

The directors are responsible for the mamtenance and integnty of the company’s website
Legislation 1n the United Kingdom governing the preparaton and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislaton m other jurisdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are listed in the directors and adwvisers section
of the annual report confirm that, to the best of their knowledge

— the group financial statements, which have been prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial posinon and
profit of the group, and

— the business review includes a fair review of thc development and performance of the
business and the position of the group, together with a descripuon of the principal nisks
and uncertaintes that 1t faces

By order of the Board N
Charlie Mayfield C'A'M AH’\ L.A
Helen Weir

Directors

22 April 2013 " Y,
L4
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of
John Leuwrs plc

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements {the “financial
statements”) of John Lews plc for the year ended 26 January 2013 which comprise the
consohidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive expense, the
consolidated balance sheet, the balance sheet of the company, the consolidated and company
statements of changes in equity, the consolidated and company statements of cash flows and the
related notes to the accounts The financial reporung framework that has been applied 1n their
preparation ts applicable faw and International Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Umnion and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as
applied 1n accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 88, the
directors are responsible for the preparauon of the financial statements and for being sausfied
that they give a true and fair iew Qur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinron on the
financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Audiung
(UK and Ircland) Those standards require us to comply with the Audiing Pracuces Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opmions, has been prepared for and only for the company's
members as 2 body m accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose We do not, in giving these opmions, accept or assume responsibihiy for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the finanaal statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and company's circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmficant
accountng estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information i the annual
report and accounts to idenufy maternal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements 1f
we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or mconsistencies we consider the
mmplicauons for our report

Opmion on financial statements
In our opmion

— the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent
company’s affairs as at 26 January 2013 and of the group’s profit and group’s and parent
company’s cash flows for the year then ended,

— the group financial statements have been properiy prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Unton,

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied 1n accordance with the prowvistons
of the Compames Act 2006, and

- the financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group financial statements, Arucle 4 of the IAS
Regulauon
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of
John Lew:s plc

continued

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opmnion the nformation given in the Directors’ Report for the finanaal year for which
the financaal statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financal statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothmg to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you Lf, m our opimion

adequate accounung records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

the parent company financial statements are not 1n dgreement with the accounung records
and returns, or

certamn disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

we e not recewved all the mformauon and explanations we require for our audit

Jv.

Ranjan Sriskandan (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountanis and Statutory Aunditors
London

22 Apnil 2013
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Retail branches

John Lewis Stores

London

Southern England

Midlands, East Angha,

Northern England, Wales and Scotland

John Lews, Oxford Sueet
Juhn Lewrs Brent Cross
Peter Jones, Sloane Square

Juhn Lewis, Kingston

John Lewss Stratford Ciy
John Lewss athome Croydon

Waitrose Supermarkets and Stores

John Lews, Bluewater
John Lewas Cnbbs Causeway

John Lewis Exeter

John Lewis, High Wycombe
John Lewrs Mifton hevnes

John Lewis, Reading

John Lews, Svuthampton

John Lewis Watford
John Lews, Welwyn

John Lewis, Aberdeen
John Lewis Cambndge
Joshn Lewrs Cardiff
John Lewis Cheadle
John Lews, Edinburgh
John Lewss, Glasgow
John Lewis, Leicester
John Lewas, Liverpool
John Lewrs, Newcastle

John Lewss, Norwich

John Lewss Nottingham

John Lews, Peterborough
John Lewys Sheffield

John Lews, Solthull

John Lewss, Trafford

John Lewis at home Chester
John Lewss at home, ipswich
John Lewss at home Tamweorth

Knight & Lee Southsea

John Lewis at home, Chuchester

John Lewis at home Newbury
John Lewws at home  Poole

John Lews at home, Swindon
John Lewis at home, Tunbridge Wells

London

Balham Cheam Enfield Kensington Ravnes Park Touenham Court Road
Barbican Chelsea Finchley Kingston Richmond Twickenham
Barnet Chiswick Fulham Knighwsbridge Rushp Upnunster
Bayswater Clapham Fulham Palace Road  Marvlebone Sanderstead Vauxhall
Beckenham Clapham Common Gloucester Road Mull Hill South Harrow Wandsworth
Belgravia Clerkenwell Green Streer Green Muswell Hill South Woodford West Ealing
Biggin Hill Coulsdon Hampton New Malden Suunes Westfield
Bloomsbury Crouch End Hurrow Weald Northwood Stratford City Whetstane
Brent Cross Crovdon Highbury Corner Old Brompton Road St Kathanne Docks Wimbledon
Bromley East Sheen High Helborn Palmers Green Surbiton Wimbledon Hill
Bromley South Edgware Road Holloway Road Parsons Creen Swiss Cottage Worcester Park
Canary Wharf Enheld { hase Ishington Putney Temple Forwne

Southern England

Abingdon Chandlers Ford Fleet Lewes Saffron Walden Wantage
Allington Park Cheltenham Frimley Lilehampion Salisbury Warminster
Alton Chesham Cerrards Cross Longfield Saltash Waterlooville
Amersham Chichester Gillingham Lymington Sandhurst Welhngton
Ampthill Chippenham Godalming Madenhead Sevenodks Welwyn Garden Civy
Andover Christchurch Coldsworth Park Marlborough Stdmouth Westbury Park
Ashford Cirencester Caosport Marlow Southampion Weston Super Mare
Banstead Clifton Halsham Melksham Southend West Byfleet
Bath Cobham Harpenden Milton Kevney Southsea Weybridge
Beaconsfield Calchester H wslemere Nailsea St Albans Wimborne
Bedford Crewkerne Havant Newbury Stevenage Winchester
Berkhamsted Crowborough Headington Okehampon Stornnguen Windsot
Billericav Dartford Henlev Oxted Stroud Winton

Bishop s Storford Dibden Hersham Paddock Wood Sunnmngdale Witney
Bracknell Doichester Hertford Parkstone Tenterden Wokingham
Bridport Dorking Huchin Petersficld Thame Woodley
Brighton Eastbourne Holsworthy Porushead Thatcham Worthing
Buckhurst Hill East Cowes Hurley Poundbury Tonbndge Yatelev
Buckingham Last Grinstead Horsham Ramsgate Torquav

Burgess Hill Epsom Hvthe Reading Twyford

Cantetbury Esher Kings Hifl Rickmansworth Uckfield

Caterham Exeter Leigh on Sea Ringwood Wallingford

Caversham Farnham Leighton Buzzard Romsey Walton on Thames
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Retail branches

continued

Midlands, East Anglia, Wales, Northern England and Scotland

Abergavenny Cheadle Hulme Harrog e Meanwood Peterborough Stourbndge
Alcester Chester Hexham Mona Bridge Pontland Stratford Upon Avon
Alderley Edge Colmore Row Hunungdon Moenmouth Pontprennau Sudbury
Altrincham Comely Bank Ipwich Maorningside Poynton Suton Coldfield
Ashbourne Cowbndge Ipswich Cranes Newcastle Rushden Swaffham

Barry D nentry Jesmond Newark Sandbach Towcester

Blaby Drostwich heniiworth Newmarket Saxmundham Walion Le Dale
Brackley El Ringsthorpe Newport Sheffield Willerby

Bury St Edmunds Fivroy Srreet knutsford Newton Mourns Shrewsbury Wilmslow
Buxton Formby Leedy North Walsham Sprnmungfields Wolverhampton
Byres Road Four Qaks Lechficld Nurwich Samford Wymondham
Caldicont Great Mahein Lincoln Notungham Surling York

{ wmbndge H Al Green Lutterwurth Oudby St lves

Cardaff Harborne Market Harborough — Otdey St Neots

Channel Islands

Adeiral Park Rahars Red Houses St Helies St Saviour

In addition o the shops histed above, the Partnership aoperates the following businesses
Johnlewws com [nterne! retail

John Lewss Insurance [nsurance products and services

wautrose com friernet reiarl, mal order and wholesale wncluding export

Herbert Parkmson, Darwen Weauing and making up

Leckford Eswate, Stackbndge Farmmg
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Notice of AGM

Nouce 1s hereby given that the eighty-fifth annual general meeting of the company will be held
at 12 45pm on 6 June 2013 at Partnership Services Division head office, Spedan House,
Doncastle Road, Bracknell, Berkshire RG12 8YA

- To recewe the Company’s annual accounts, together with the Ihrectors’ Report, and the
Auditor’s Report on those accounts for the year ended 26 January 2013

— To re-elect Tracey Killen, Rachel Oshorne, Mark Price, Andy Street and Helen Weir as
directors of the Company

Biographical details of the directors and their experience 1s set out on page 30

- To re-appount PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Auditor of the Company to hold office from
the conclusion of the meeting until the conclusion of the next meetung of the Company at
which accounts are lawd

— To authornise the directors to determine the remunerauon of the Auditor

By Order of the Board

Margaret Casely-Hayford

Company Secretary

171 Victena Street, London SWIE 5NN
22 Apnil 2013

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meenng 1s entitled to appoint one or more proxies
to attend and vote instead of him

A proxy need not be a member of the company, but a proxy who 1s not a member has only the
nights conferred by secuion 329 of the Compames Act 2006 To be effective, a proxy form must
reach the company's registered office not later than forty-eight hours before the time for
holding the meeting For the convenience of members a form of proxy 15 enclosed
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